" k&\l

STATE OF CALIFORNIA -- THE RESOURCES AGENCY

GRAY DAVIS, GOVERNOR

CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION

45 FREMONT STREET, SUITE 2000
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105-2219
VOICE AND TDD (415) 804-5200

RECORD PACKET COPY

W17c

Staff: Jim Baskin

Staff Report: October 26, 2001
Hearing on

Revised Findings: November 14, 2001
Commission Action

on Revised Findings:

STAFF REPORT: REVISED FINDINGS

APPLICATION NO.:
APPLICANT (8):
AGENT (8):

PROJECT LOCATION:

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

INDIVIDUAL REQUESTING
REVOCATION:

SUMMARY OF COMMISSION
ACTION:

COMMISSIONERS ON THE
PREVAILING SIDE:

SUBSTANTIVE FILE
DOCUMENTS:

R-A-1-MEN-97-046
David and Kathryn Riley
Ralph Matheson

38868 Sedalia Drive, Gualala, Mendocino County,
APN 145-181-01.

Construct a two-story, 2,814-squre-foot, single-
family residence with subterranean garage,
driveway, sewer lift pump, drainage system, and

grading.
Julie Verran
Denial of revocation request on October 11, 2001.

Allgood, Detloff, Hart, Kruer, McCoy, Nava, Potter,
Reilly, Woolley, Wan

1) Mendocino County CDP No. 17-01;
2) Mendocino County Local Coastal Program;
and



R-A-1-MEN-97-046
RILEY, DAVID AND KATHRYN

Page 2
3) Coastal Development Permit No. A-1-MEN-
97-046.
STAFF NOTES:
1. Procedure.

The Commission held a public hearing and acted on this revocation request at its meeting
on October 11, 2001. The Commission found that the request was not based on valid
grounds enumerated in Section 13105 of the Commission’s administrative regulations
and subsequently denied the request by a vote of 0/10.

Ms. Verran supplemented her revocation request at the hearing to add five additional
contentions regarding alleged inaccuracies in the description of the degree of controversy
surrounding the project. The staff modified its recommendation orally at the meeting to
address these new contentions. @ The Commission adopted the modified staff
recommendation with an additional finding that Ms. Verran exercised due diligence is
pursuing the request for revocation

As the Commission’s action differed from the written staff recommendation dated
September 28, 2001 and its addendum dated October 10, 2001, the following revised
findings have been prepared for the Commission’s consideration as the needed findings
to support its action. The Commission will hold a public hearing and vote on the revised
findings at its November 14, 2001 meeting. The purpose of the hearing is to consider the
adequacy of the revised findings rather than to reconsider the appropriateness of the
Commission’s action on the revocation request. Public testimony will be limited
accordingly.

I MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

MOTION, STAFF RECOMMENDATION, AND' RESOLUTION TO ADOPT
REVISED FINDINGS '

The staff recommends that the Commission adopt the revised findings in support of the
Commission’s action on October 11, 2001 denying the request for revocation. The
proper motion is:

Motion:

I move that the Commission adopt the revised findings, in support of the
Commission’s action on September 11, 2000, denying Coastal Development
Permit Revocation Request No. R-A-1-MEN-97-046.

""r
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Staff Recomniendation of Approval.

Staff recommends a YES vote on the motion. Passage of this motion will result in the
adoption of revised findings as set forth in this staff report. The motion requires a
majority vote of the members from the prevailing side present at the October 11, 2001
hearing, with at least three of the prevailing members voting. Only those Commissioners
on the prevailing side of the Commission’s action are eligible to vote on the revised
findings. See the listing of eligible Commissioners on Page 1.

Resolution to Adopt Revised Findings:

The Commission hereby adopts the findings set forth below for the denial of
Coastal Development Permit Revocation No. R-A-1-MEN-97-046 on the ground
that the findings support the Commission’s decision made on October 11, 2001
and accurately reflect the reasons for it.

ACTION ON REVOCATION REQUEST ON OCTOBER 11, 2001

Adopted Resolution to Deny Revocation Request

The Commission hereby denies the request for revocation of the Commission’s decision
on Coastal Development Permit No. A-1-97-046 on the grounds that there is no
intentional inclusion of inaccurate, erroneous or incomplete information in connection
with a coastal development permit application, where the Commission finds that accurate
and complete information would have caused the Commission to require additional or
different conditions on a permit or deny an application.

II. FINDINGS AND DECLARATIONS.

A. Site Description.

The 1.2-acre subject site is located west of Highway One in Gualala, at the terminus of a
private road extending from Sedalia Drive. The property, which is situated just northwest
of the mouth of the Gualala River near the edge of a steep coastal bluff, consists of a very
narrow coastal terrace and part of the adjoining hillside. An abandoned logging railroad
roadbed is located within the property, near the northeasterly property boundary, part way
up the hillside. Groves of pine trees are located at the southeast and northwest ends of
the property. There is no sensitive habitat on the subject parcel.

B. Project Description.

The proposed development consists of construction of a two-story, 28-foot-high, 2,814-
square-foot single-family residence with an attached, subterranean garage/basement,
driveway, sewer lift pump system to accommodate public sewer service, and drainage
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system that includes freshwater leach lines (see Exhibit No. 8). The house would be built
partly on the terrace and partly on the lower part of the hillside.

C. Project History.

In 1994 the County of Mendocino approved a coastal development permit (CDP 06-94)
for residential development on the subject site. In 1996 the applicant applied to the
County for a renewal/modification of the project that proposed a redesign of the house in
the same location, including reducing square footage and lowering the height to
approximately 28 feet. On February 27, 1997, Mendocino County's Coastal Permit
Administrator approved with conditions (CDP 06-94 (R/MOD)). This approval was -
appealed to the Mendocino County Board of Supervisors, who denied the appeal and
approved the project on May 23, 1997. The County then issued a Notice of Final Action
on the Coastal Development Permit, which was received by Commission staff on June
27, 1997.

The Commission subsequently received an appeal of the County of Mendocino's decision
to approve the project from Julie Verran. The appellant filed the appeal in a timely
manner on July 9, 1997, within 10 working days of receipt by the Commission of the
Notice of Final Local Action.

At the Commission meeting of August 14, 1997, the Commission opened the hearing and
determined that a substantial issue existed with respect to the grounds on which the
appeal had been filed. The Commission continued the public hearing to a later date and
took no action on the de novo portion of the appeal that day, requesting additional
geologic information from the applicant.

Additional geologic information was submitted, and staff prepared another staff
recommendation with regard to the merits of the permit application. The Commission
heard the project de novo at the meeting of March 11, 1998, but again continued the
hearing to a later date, directing staff to request additional information from the
applicants on sea caves and on the applicants' economic interest in the property. The
latter information would be important for considering whether a denial of the project
would constitute an unconstitutional taking of private property. The applicants provided
the Commission with additional information regarding sea caves, but declined to provide
the Commission with information regarding the applicants' economic interest in the

property.

On August 12, 1998, the Commission heard more testimony and then approved with
conditions Coastal Development Permit No. A-1-MEN-97-046. The permit included
several prior-to-issuance conditions requiring recordation of a deed restriction prohibiting
future construction of shoreline protective structures, and approval of final site,
foundation, drainage, and landscaping plans. Revised findings were subsequently
adopted by the Commission on October 16, 1998.
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The applicants subsequently requested a one-year time extension of Coastal Development
Permit A-1-MEN-97-046. The extension request was received in a timely manner on
August 2, 2000, prior to when the permit would have expired had the request not been
received. The Executive Director published the Notice of Extension Request for Coastal
Development pursuant to Section 13169 of the Commission regulations. Within the 10
working day period for filing an objection as set forth in Section 13169 of the
Commission regulations, the Commission received ten letters of objection to the permit
extension application. Three additional letters of objection were later received raising the
same issues as those raised in other letters received within the 10 working day period.

At the September 13, 2000 Commission meeting, the Executive Director reported his
determination that there are no changed circumstances and reported the letters of
objection that had been received. At that meeting, more than three Commissioners
requested that a hearing be held on the permit extension request.

On December 15, 2000, the Commission held the hearing on the permit extension request
and approved the permit extension request for a one-year period to a new expiration date
of August 12, 2001, finding that no changed circumstances had occurred.

On August 6, 2001, after having determined that all prior-to-issuance conditions had been
met, the Executive Director issued Coastal Development Permit A-1-MEN-96-046.

Construction commenced thereafter.

D. Chronology of Revocation Request.

On September 29, 1998, approximately seven weeks following conditional approval of
the coastal development permit, the Commission offices received a written revocation
request from Julie Verran (see Exhibit No. 3). The request alleged that inaccurate,
erroneous or incomplete information had been included in the presentation of oral
testimony, audio-visual exhibits, and application materials at the Commission’s August
12, 1998 hearing by the applicants’ agent and attorney relating to the subject permit. The
materials submitted by Ms. Verran included a statement that the submittal was only a
portion of a more comprehensive revocation request. The September 29, 1998 letter from
Ms. Verran closed by stating, “enclosed is the first part relating to blueprints, of my
analysis supporting a request for revocation of the Commission’s August 12 action on my
appeal.” [emphasis added] The analysis submitted with the letter also stated in closing,
“More sections to follow.” On October 8, 1998, Commission staff responded to Ms.
Verran’s submittal seeking clarification as to whether additional materials relating to the
revocation were forthcoming as had been stated or whether the materials submitted up to
that date constituted her whole revocation request (see Exhibit No.4). Ms. Verran did not
submit additional revocation request materials until September 10, 2001.

On September 10, 2001, the Commission offices received additional revocation request
materials, dated September 5, 2001, from Ms. Verran (see Exhibit No. 5). Among other
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things, the September 5, 2001 letter from Ms. Verran includes a new revocation request
seeking revocation of Coastal Development Permit Time Extension No. A-1-MEN-97-
046-E1. The letter raised numerous other issues including matters related to her separate
request that the Commission revoke the original permit, allegations of violations of the
permit, and criticisms of how the Commission processed the time extension request and
dealt with concerns raised by Ms. Verran at the time. The only bases for revocation of
the permit specified in the revocation request concerns issues regarding information
within written correspondence, visual displays, and testimony presented at the permit
hearing that allegedly misrepresents where the house was to be constructed in relation to
the location approved by the Commission, and the size of the house compared to that
approved in a previous permit issued by the County.

On October 2, 2001 the Commission offices received an additional letter from Ms.
Verran presenting a fourth contention of alleged grounds for revocation of the permit (see
Exhibit No. 6). The contention alleges that a statement made by the architect in an April
29, 1998 letter concerning the visibility of the site from public parklands was erroneous.

At the October 11, 2001 hearing on the revocation request, Ms. Verran again submitted
correspondence and gave testimony raising five additional contentions for grounds of
revocation (see Exhibit No. 7). These contentions allege that the statements made by the
applicants’ agent misrepresented: (1) the amount of agreement between the geologic
experts who had studied the site regarding project site-suitability; (2) the location of the
site within a neighborhood of special concern; (3) the size of the proposed residence
compared with other houses within the neighboring area; (4) the location of the sea caves
relative to the building site; and (5) the amount of support among neighboring owners
and occupants for the proposed project

E. Summary of Revocation Request’s Contentions.

As stated above, the grounds for revocation are very narrow. The three elements that
must be established before a permit can be revoked under the grounds asserted in this
instance are:

o That the applicant provided inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information; and

. That if the Commission had known of the information, it would have
denied the permit or imposed different conditions; and

o That inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information was supplied
intentionally.

The revocation request alleges these grounds are met for each of the following nine
contentions:




R-A-1-MEN-97-046
RILEY, DAVID AND KATHRYN
Page 7

Relative Size of Project Contention: The revocation request contends that in oral
testimony before the Commission at the August 12, 1998 permit hearing, Frank Bacik,
the applicants’ attorney, had repeatedly stated that the size of the proposed development
was smaller than that of a development previously approved by the County of Mendocino
for the same site in 1994 under Coastal Development Permit No. CDP 06-94. Ms. Verran
asserts that, based upon a comparison of the site plans for the two projects, the current
project is significantly larger than the 1994 project by a difference of 1,695 square feet.
The revocation request provides no motive for Mr. Bacik to purposefully misrepresent
the relative size of the houses. However, based on the general tenor of the revocation
request, it appears that Ms. Verran believes that the alleged provision of inaccurate
information was provided in an attempt to persuade the Commission to approve the
project because a net decrease in effects on coastal resources would result from
approving the current project design compared with that previously approved for the site
by the County of Mendocino in 1994.

Location of Building Site Contention: The revocation request further argues that in
written correspondence and in the presentation of audio-visual materials before the
Commission at the August 12, 1998 hearing, Ralph Matheson, the applicants’ agent,
misrepresented the location of the proposed house as being sited further seaward than that
described within other permit application materials. A statement within a letter to the
Commission from Mr. Matheson is cited regarding the building site not being on a cliff
over the ocean, but rather on a terrace away from wave runup exposure. The revocation
request contends that this statement mischaracterized the intended location of the site
improvements. With respect to exhibits presented at the hearing, Ms Verran states that
the agent displayed a drawing of an oblique view of the Robinson Point area showing the
building site shifted westward away from the actual site proposed in the site plan. From
statements within the revocation request regarding wave runup at the Robinson Point
vicinity and her analysis of the height-above-grade of the proposed house compared with
the location of other nearby residential structures and public parklands, the revocation
request is apparently contending that these incidents of alleged inaccurate information
were perpetrated by the agent in an attempt to downplay the significance of the project’s
impacts to geologic stability and visual resources in its more landward location such that
the Commission would be persuaded to grant the coastal development permit.

Inaccuracies in Site Plan’s Base Map Contention: The revocation request also states
that the site plan submitted with the permit application was based upon a survey map
dating to 1990 that did not reflect current conditions at the site with respect to recent
blufftop erosion. The revocation request contends that the inclusion of this allegedly
inaccurate information was purposefully done with the intent of de-emphasizing the
severity of coastal erosion at the site to gain more favorable consideration of the permit
application by the Commission.

Project Site Visibility Contention: The revocation request contends that in written
correspondence presented at the August 12, 1998 permit hearing inaccurate, erroneous, or
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incomplete information was provided to the Commission regarding the visibility of the
project site from public parklands.

Concurrence Among Geologists Regarding Site Stability: The revocation request
contends that in written correspondence presented at the August 12, 1998 permit hearing
inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information was provided to the Commission
regarding concurrence among the geo-technical experts reviewing the proposed
development regarding the overall suitability of the project site and whether the proposed
project was problematic with respect to geologic issues. Ms. Verran states that with true
and complete information, the Commission could have required a smaller house pulled
further back from wave splash areas.

Highly Scenic Area Status: The revocation request notes that while a statement
contained within written correspondence presented at the August 12, 1998 permit hearing
regarding the project site not being within a designated highly scenic area was true, the
statement was misleading as the area is within a neighborhood of special concern where
policies for the protection of public views and historic structures apply.

Comparative Neighborhood House Sizes: The revocation request points out that in
correspondence presented at the August 12, 1998 permit hearing inaccurate, erroneous, or

incomplete information was provided to the Commission regarding the size of the

residence compared with another residence in the surrounding neighborhood. Ms. Verran
states that with correct information about the size of existing houses, the Commission
could have required a smaller house.

Proximity of Sea Caves to Building Site: The revocation request characterizes
statements within correspondence presented to the Commission at the August 12, 1998
permit hearing as containing inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information regarding
the extent of sea caves at the bluff base relative to the blufftop building site. Ms. Verran
states that had the Commission been correctly and completely informed in 1998 by the
applicants that sea caves did indeed penetrate under the vegetated bluff and under or near
the house site, the Commission could have denied the permit and sought public
acquisition of the property as too hazardous to build on.

Controversy of Project: The revocation request contends that in written correspondence
presented at the August 12, 1998 permit hearing inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information was provided to the Commission regarding the amount of support for and
lack of objection to the project among neighboring property owners and occupants.
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F. Analvsis of Contentions.

1. Relative Size of Project.

Test No.1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information?

Contention:

In her revocation request of September 29-30, 1998, Ms. Verran states:

On August 12, 1998, at the hearing on my appeal in Huntington Beach,
attorney Frank Bacik, acting for the Rileys, repeatedly stated that the 1997
design was smaller than the 1994 design. [emphasis in original]

After stating the results of a comparison of the two sets of plans for the projects, The
revocation request goes on to conclude, “(t)herefore applicants and their agents
knowingly submitted false information to the Commission.”

Analysis:

In 1994, the Coastal Permit Administrator for the County of Mendocino administratively
approved Coastal Development Permit No. CDP 06-94. The project was described in the
County’s staff report, in applicable part as, “a proposal to construct a three story
approximately 3800 square foot four bedroom single family dwelling along with a
driveway to the site and decking along three sides of the dwelling.” On page Al1.2 of the
site plans for the approved permit (Hart Design Group, Inc.), the development was further
detailed as consisting of 2,230 square feet of building coverage and 2,257 square feet of
paving, for a total of 4,487 square feet. :

On August 12, 1998, the Commission approved Coastal Development Permit No. A-1-
MEN-97-046. The project was described in the Commission’s staff report as, “construct
a two-story, 2,814-square-foot, single-family residence with a subterranean garage,
driveway, sewer lift pump, drainage system, and grading.” On page Al.l of the site
plans for the approved project (Matheson Design), the development was further detailed
as consisting of 2,982 square feet of building, 2,700 square feet of paved area (drive), and
500 square feet of walks, patio, etc., for a total of 6,182 square feet.

During his testimony before the Commission at the August 12, 1998 permit hearing,
Frank Bacik, attorney-of-record for the applicants, made statements with respect to the
relative size of the proposed house compared with that which was approved for the site
by the County in 1994. The following statements attributed to Mr. Bacik were transcribed
by Commission staff from audio tapes of the August 12, 1998 hearing:
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To deny the project at this time would deny my clients of the use, the
economic use, of their property, which has already been the subject of an
approved use permit by the Commission. an LCP, in 94, allowing a
bigger house. You may recall from the staff report that that was a log
house design. They applied for a new permit in *96 to provide a smaller
house, with a smaller footprint, made of materials and in a design more in
keeping with the other houses in the neighborhood. [emphases added]

Mr. Bacik’s testimony contained statements, underlined above, that do have the potential
to be interpreted as being inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete. He specifically stated
that the County’s 1994 permit allowed a “bigger house.” Based upon a comparison of the
total square footage of living area (i.e. total floor area coverage) for the two residences as
presented in permit documents, this appears to be an accurate statement, as the 1994
house was approved for 3,800-square-feet while the house approved in 1998 totals 2,982
square feet.

However, Mr. Bacik also stated that in the revised permit application made before the
County in 1996, and the subject of the Commission’s August 12, 1998 de novo permit
hearing, the applicants were requesting “a smaller house with a smaller footprint.”
Though the residence approved by the Commission in 1998 may have been reduced in its
total floor area coverage compared with that previously approved by the County in 1994,
there is not adequate information within the project files to determine whether the
building footprint is larger or smaller. The structural data on the 1994 and 1998 sets of
site building plans are limited to total building coverage and paving areas; they do not
specify ground-level building footprint sizes. It should also be noted that when the total
extent of building coverage, driveways, patio areas and other site improvements are
summed for each development, it does appear that a net increase in the overall
development is evident in the 1998 design compared with that for the 1994 development.
Accordingly, some confusion exists as to the exact building footprint sizes for each of the
house designs.

To accurately assess whether the “building footprint” for the 1998 residence is smaller
than that previously approved in 1994 as Mr. Bacik contends, a set of scalable drawings
of the both house designs are needed. As the development approved by the County in
1994 is not part of the record for the development appealed to the Commission and
subsequently conditionally approved in 1998, the Commission is unable to reach a
conclusion at this time as to the veracity of Mr. Bacik’s statement regarding a reduction
in building footprint size. Nonetheless, the Commission does not find it necessary to
reach a conclusion on this point. The Commission finds that, whether or not the
applicants’ attorney supplied inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention does
not provide grounds for revocation because, as demonstrated in the following discussion,
even if the information was inaccurate or erroneous, the information would not have
affected the approval of the permit and because the revocation request does not
demonstrate that the applicants intentionally provided any inaccurate information.
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Test No.2: Would accurate and completé information have affected the
conditions or approval of the permit?

Contention:

The revocation request made no specific contention or provided information relative to
this point. However, from the general tenor of the revocation request, it can be inferred
that the revocation request is asserting that had the Commission known of the relative
increase in size of the proposed house compared with that approved by the County of
Mendocino on the same site in 1994, the Commission would have concluded that the
proposed development was in some way incompatible with the site. For example, the
Commission might have found that: (a) no building site of adequate size existed on the
property to accommodate the larger house proposal; and/or (b) the development would be
too large to be found compatible with the character of the surrounding area. In such an
instance the Commission would have likely either denied the permit or included other
conditions limiting the size of the site improvements.

Analysis:

The Commission must determine if accurate and complete information would have
affected the conditions or the approval of the permit. The revocation request may
contend that had Mr. Bacik accurately portrayed the increase in size of the subject
residential development proposal compared with that previously approved by the County
of Mendocino on the same site in 1994, the Commission would have attached different or
additional permit conditions, or disallowed the development based on an inconsistency of
the proposed project with LCP and Coastal Act policies and standards.

The underlying assumption of this ground for revocation is that the increase in size of the
subject development proposal compared to that previously permitted but not constructed
is a determining factor in the Commission’s review of development projects. Clearly, the
presence of previously permitted and built-out developments are routinely considered by
the Commission in assessing whether new development would be compatible with
neighborhood character, interfere with public access, or exceed limited capacities of
public services such as water, sewage disposal, or roads.

However, the Commission’s findings for approval of a new single-family residential
development, with respect to its consistency with the visual and geologic policies of the
LCP, do not in any way rely on the size of the house being proposed relative to the size of
the earlier approved house for the site. Rather, the particular size and design of the house
being proposed is evaluated for its consistency with the LCP policies in place at the time
the Commission acts. The Commission may impose conditions or require modifications
to the proposed project to make that project consistent with the LCP, not in terms of how
it may or may not relate to an earlier permitted project. For the Riley permit, the
Commission attached special conditions requiring such modifications, including: (1) a
plan review condition to ensure that final plans for the house proposed at that time would
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incorporate specific recommendations of the geologic report for that house into the
project design; (2) a condition requiring landscaping to screen the proposed house from
view from Gualala Point Park; and (3) building material specifications to ensure the
exterior appearance of the house or its lighting would not impact the character of its
surrounds.

In addition, it should be noted that even though the County numbered the Riley’s
application for the current residence in such a way as to imply the project was reviewed
as an amendment or modification to the previously issued permit, the original 1994
permit had expired. Consequently, whether or not the 1998 approval had been granted,
the project authorized by the 1994 approval could never be built because the permit had
expired. Thus, the Commission on appeal was not influenced by the notion that if they
didn’t approve the proposed project before them at that time, the 1994 project would be
built. Rather, the Commission was evaluating the 1998 project solely for its own
conformance with the LCP and the public access policies of the Coastal Act.

Thus, the increase in size of the current house design size compared to that authorized by
Mendocino County in 1994 was not a determining factor in the Commission’s review of
the project. The Commission assessed the proposed project based on its unique effects on
coastal resources, individually and cumulatively together with those of other existing and
planned development. The standard of review was the project’s consistency with
applicable LCP and Coastal Act policies, not whether the house was bigger or smaller
than the house previously approved for the site by the County. Accordingly, comparing
the effects of the project with those of another past-permitted and unbuilt development is
not a determinative factor in the Commission’s decision making process.

The Commission therefore finds that this contention does not provide grounds for
revocation under Section 13105(a) because it does not show adequate or complete
information would have affected the conditions or the approval of the permit.

Test No.3: Was the erroneous or incomplete information supplied intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request contends that the statements of Mr. Bacik dismissing the relative
size of the proposed house compared with the size of the house authorized in a permit
previously issued in 1994 but never constructed were intentionally made to presumably
defraud the Commission into concluding that an overall decrease in impacts to coastal
resources would result in the approval of the current Riley permit application. The
revocation request provided no further evidence to substantiate this claim.

Analysis:

In this last criterion of the grounds for revocation, the revocation request asserts that Mr.
Bacik knowingly defrauded the Commission of accurate information to obtain the permit
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requested by the applicants. The revocation request, however, does not provide any
direct evidence that the applicants’ attorney had purposefully provided inaccurate
information to deceive the Commission through misstating the increase in size of the
current proposed house compared with that approved previously by Mendocino County
in 1994,

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to conclude that the applicants’ attorney intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by misstating that no increase in the size of the
proposed house compared with that previously approved would result. The revocation
request has not established that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information was
intentionally supplied. Therefore, the revocation request must be denied on this basis
alone. In addition, the Commission finds that, whether or not the applicants’ attorney
intentionally supplied inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention does not
provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated above, the information would
not have affected the approval of the permit or the setting of conditions thereto.

2. Location of Building Site.

Test No. 1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information?

Contention:

The revocation request contends that, in his presentation before the Commission at the
August 12, 1998 hearing and in correspondence previously submitted, Ralph Matheson,
the applicants’ agent, provided inaccurate information regarding the location of the
building site relative to topographic features at the project parcel.

The inaccurate information allegedly included both hearing exhibits and correspondence
submitted by the agent on behalf of the applicants. With respect to hearing exhibits, the
revocation request dated September 29-30, 1998 states, in pertinent part:

The blueprints for the Matheson design show the house with a slab
elevation of 62’ above sea level, next floor at 71/, top floor at 80’, and the
roof elevation at 93.6". Yet, at the August 12, 1998 hearing, Mr. Matheson
displayed for about 10 minutes a large drawing which showed the
proposed house located far below the Verran house and out on a terrace
above the sea. In fact the house would cut into the slope below the Verran
and Stout/Sheridan houses, compromising their lateral support, and the
roofline would reach approximately the first floor level of those up-slope
homes, appearing three stories high from the public beach and park.
Therefore, applicants’ agent knowingly provided false information to the
Commission in the form of a drawing.
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Further, the revocation request letter, dated September 5, 2001, states, in pertinent part:

At the August 1998, Commission hearing, applicants’ agent Ralph
Matheson presented a drawing of an oblique aerial view of the
neighborhood houses and the proposed Riley house that was inaccurate
and misleading... He also showed a large, simplified drawing of the same
false size relationship while speaking to the Commission... Matheson’s
drawing represented the upslope homes as being far above the proposed
Riley house, with a concave slope between them and the Riley lot. It left
out important features at each end of the Riley lot, the access/drainage
easement road and Robinson Gulch. The Riley house lot appeared small
in comparison with the existing homes, most of which are pre-
Commission.

With respect to alleged misrepresentation of the house location in written materials, the
revocation request letter, dated September 5, 2001, referring to Mr. Matheson’s letter of
April 29, 1998 (see Exhibit No. 5), states in applicable part:

In the accompanying letter, Matheson makes many false assertions which
I can refute. This is but one example: On page 1 Matheson states ‘This
property is not situated on a cliff over the ocean but on a terrace with the
ocean waves hitting on the sandstone rocks which are downward and some
distance from the building site.” The two enlarged photos show that this
contention is false. Matheson designed both my house and the Van de
Water house. The enclosed large photo from Robinson Point, and the last
photo on the last page are shot from the Van de Water property with their
permission. Thus Matheson knew the topography including the undercut
northwest face of the Riley lot; therefore that statement was knowingly
false. [emphasis in original]

Analysis:

At the time of the writing of this staff report, the exhibits presented at the August 12,
1998 hearing were not available for review. Consequently, the veracity of the revocation
request’s claim that these exhibits contained inaccurate or erroneous information could
not be analyzed.

With regard to the alleged inaccuracies in written correspondence, the revocation request
accurately quotes Mr. Matheson’s statements in her September 5, 2001 revocation
request letter regarding the location of the house relative to the blufftop cliff. In addition,
the revocation request provides a series of photographs that were intended to demonstrate
that the exposure of the building site to oceanfront hazards, such as wave runup, had been
inaccurately portrayed in Mr. Matheson’s letter.
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In order for the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point,
the Commission would have to conclude that inaccurate or erroneous information had
been provided to the Commission. The Commission does not find it necessary to reach a
conclusion on this point. The Commission finds that, whether or not the presentation
and/or correspondence presented on behalf of the applicants contained inaccurate or
erroneous information, this contention does not provide grounds for revocation because
as demonstrated below, the information would not have affected the approval of the
permit or the conditions thereto, and because the revocation request does not establish
that the information was presented to the Commission by the applicants intentionally.

Test No.2: Would accurate and complete information have affected the
conditions or approval of the permit?

Contention:

The revocation request made no specific contention or provided information relative to
this point. However, from its general tenor, it appears that the revocation request is
asserting that had the alleged major deviation in the location of the proposed house as
depicted in Mr. Matheson’s letter and presentation visuals compared to that described in
other application materials been identified, the Commission would presumably have
further questioned the intended location for the house. If a substantially different location
than that as shown on other application materials had been confirmed by the agent, the
Commission would have concluded that the application had been substantially amended
at the hearing. The Commission could then have taken other actions relative to the
approval of the project or its conditioning, such as continuing its decision on the project
until further geologic and visual resource impact analyses had been conducted.

Analysis:

The Commission must determine if accurate and complete information would have
affected the conditions or the approval of the permit. The revocation request contends
that had Mr. Matheson accurately portrayed the true location of the residential
development in his letter and visual displays presented at the permit hearing the
Commission would have attached different or additional permit conditions, or denied the
permit.

In making this determination, the Commission makes notes of the role written
correspondence and display exhibits play in the Commission’s consideration of the merits
of a given development project. Correspondence and other exhibits containing
information of a general nature, such as those in which the revocation request alleges
contains inaccurate information, carry relatively less significance compared with other,
more detailed application materials. For example, a written statement comparing the
location of a proposed house to that of topographic features on a parcel or an artist’s
rendering on the orientation of site improvements relative to nearby structures serves to
help describe the general project setting. For a more precise understanding of where site



R-A-1-MEN-97-046
RILEY, DAVID AND KATHRYN
Page 16

improvements are located in relation to landscape features or other structures, the
Commission generally relies on plan- and elevation-view site maps, geologic reports, or
other information as contained within other technical reports.

Within the staff report for the Riley de novo hearing, the Commission was provided with
a copy of the applicants’ to-scale site plans that depicted the location for the proposed
house relative to the site’s topography and nearby property boundaries (see Exhibit No. 8
for a copy of the site plan from the staff report for the Riley de novo hearing). The map
also included the location of the lot lines of adjoining parcels to the east. The geologic
investigation prepared for the project and the report peer review report also contained
aerial photographs of the site, detailed information on the features at the site, and
supplementary information regarding building setbacks from coastal erosion-prone areas.

These exhibits clearly show the house site to be constructed cut into the embankment
below the railroad grade at the eastern end of the coastal terrace. Moreover, at several
places within the adopted findings of approval for the project, the location of the house in
this area and its ramifications for consistency with the LCP were acknowledged:

With regard to the location of the proposed on the lot:

The house would be partly built on the terrace, and partly built on the
lower part of the hillside. [*“Geologic Hazards,” p. 6]

As regards the avoidance of heavily sloped areas in siting the house:

In contrast, the proposed Riley residence is not proposed to be located on
a hillside like the Coral Court site, but, rather, on a coastal terrace with
one side abutting the railroad grade. [“Bluff Retreat,” p. 11]

With respect to the potential instability of placing the house site next to the railroad
grade, the geologic investigation peer review report was cited:

Rogers/Pacific states that situating the back of the proposed residence
against the west-facing slope of the west embankment should serve to
isolate the house from both upslope drainage and landslide hazards,
provided the structure is designed and built as a fully-drained retaining
wall or series of walls. [“Effects of Stability on Adjoining Property,” p.15]

In addition, with respect to exposure to sea wave runup at the proposed building site
referenced by The revocation request in its analysis of Mr. Matheson’s letter, the benefits
of locating the house to the most landward feasible location was specifically addressed
within the Rogers/Pacific geotechnical investigation peer review report, attached as an
exhibit to the adopted findings:
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That (the recommended 35-foot blufftop setback) would be a minimum
value, and any structure situated that close to these headlands is going to
get physically splashed, during extreme storm events, and may even
experience overt damage. Additional setback for quality of life might be
considered, as should be the weathering effects of consistent seasonal salt
spray on wood framing elements. Based upon the physical evidence for .
storm splash at this site, pulling the house back as far as possible would
seem to be a prudent precaution.

Accordingly, regardless of whatever inaccuracies may have been contained within
written correspondence and visual displays presented by the applicants’ agent at the
permit hearing, these items were largely illustrative of the general project setting and
played a relatively minor role in the Commission’s consideration of the project. The
exhibits and findings in the Commission’s adopted findings demonstrate that the
Commission understood that the house would be constructed cut into the embankment
below the old railroad grade at the eastern end of the terrace. The Commission therefore
finds that this contention does not provide grounds for revocation under Section 13105(a)
because it does not show accurate and complete information would have affected the
conditions or the approval of the project.

Test No. 3:  Was the erroneous or incomplete information supplied intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request contends that the statements of Mr. Matheson regarding the
relative location of the proposed house compared with that shown in other application
materials were intentionally made to presumably mislead the Commission by
downplaying the adversity of impacts the project would have on coastal resources,
particularly geologic stability, exposure to oceanfront hazards, and views to and along the
coast from public recreational lands. The revocation request provided no further evidence
to substantiate this claim.

Analysis:

In this last criterion of the grounds for revocation, The revocation request asserts that
Matheson Design knowingly misled the Commission with inaccurate information in order
to obtain the permit. The revocation request, however, does not provide any direct
evidence that the applicants’ agent had purposefully provided inaccurate information to
deceive the Commission through statements within correspondence and in presentation
before the Commission regarding the location of the proposed house relative to the ocean
and other, more inland parcels and their improvements.

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to conclude that the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by drafting the site plans using dated information.
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The revocation request has not established that incomplete, erroneous, or incomplete
information was intentionally provided to the Commission by the applicants. Therefore,
the revocation request must be denied on this basis alone. In addition, the Commission
finds that, whether or not the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied inaccurate or
erroneous information, this contention does not provide grounds for revocation because
as demonstrated above, the information would not have affected the approval of the
permit or the setting of conditions thereto.

3. Inaccuracies in Site Plan’s Base Map.

Test No.1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information?

Contention:

The revocation request, dated September 29-30, 1998, contends that the site plans
submitted with the application for the proposed residential development contained
inaccurate information. The revocation request notes that the house designer used as a
base map for the site plans a topographic survey map prepared in 1990 that does not
accurately represent the current blufftop configuration at the project site. The revocation
request asserts that this map was submitted to the Commission “lacking the crucial edge
from which a setback must be taken.”

Analysis:

Among the notations on the site map for the Riley development developed by the
applicants’ agent (Matheson Design, 9/20/96) is an acknowledgement regarding the
origin of the data for the map, stating: “Site Plan based on topographic survey prepared
by D.N. McAdam RCE 8090 dated 5-2-90.” Accordingly, the revocation request’s
contention is correct as to the source and date of the information from which the site was
created.

With respect to whether this information is “false or incomplete” as the revocation
request contends, the relative importance of the site map accuracy must be considered in
terms of the role it plays in the Commission’s overall coastal development permit review
process. For a few small-scale, relatively straightforward coastal development permit
applications, a site map may serve as the sole application attachment. As such, the site
plan serves as a compilation of all pertinent project information necessary to enable the
Commission to conduct a comprehensive review of the proposal’s conformance with all
applicable LCP and/or Coastal Act policies and standards. However, in most instances,
the site map is supplemented by narrative descriptions, environmental assessments, and
other technical reports containing more detailed information, and represents only one
element of the information packet assembled for the development application. In such
situations, acceptable site maps are typically general in nature, often based on less precise
mapping, such as enlarged USGS topographic quadrangle or assessors parcel maps. They




R-A-1-MEN-97-046
RILEY, DAVID AND KATHRYN
Page 19

are intended to serve as a general reference illustration to be used in conjunction with
more precise information contained elsewhere in the application. This is the case in the
Riley permit application.

Moreover, as conditioned by the Commission, the site plan is not intended to be used in
verifying compliance of subsequent construction of the site improvements with required
building setbacks. Special Condition No. 2 of the subject permit requires that the
applicants prepare and submit for the approval of the Executive Director final site plans
for the development. The condition states in applicable part that:

Except as concerns the relocated and redesigned driveway, these plans
shall be consistent with all recommendations made in the Geotechnical
Investigation Report prepared by BACE Geotechnical, Inc. dated June 30,
1992, which was submitted with the application, with the four addendum
letters submitted in 1997, and with the recommendations made by
Rogers/Pacific in their review dated November 28, 1997.

Furthermore, the condition continues to require that:

The permittee shall undertake development in accordance with the
approved final plans. Any proposed changes to the approved final plans
shall be reported to the Executive Director. Proposed changes to the
approved final plans shall not occur without a Coastal Commission
approved amendment to this coastal development permit unless the
Executive Director determines that no amendment is required because the
change is not substantive in nature.

Once the final site plans are approved by the Executive Director, the County’s Planning
and Building Services Department in issuing its building permit for the project would
check the consistency of the drawings submitted as part of a building permit application
with the final site plans approved by the Coastal Commission staff. Accordingly, the site
map does not play a crucial role in ensuring construction compliance with the
recommended blufftop setback. Thus, the precision of the final site plans approved
through the condition compliance process after approval of the permit by the Commission
is critical for the development of the project. The site maps submitted with the
application and used in the staff report exhibits need not be as precise. In this case, the
bluff top surveyed on the site map was accurate as of 1990. The person requesting
revocation does not challenge the accuracy of the site map in showing the bluff edge in
1990, just that it was several years old. Therefore, as: (1) the intended purpose of the
exhibits was to provide a general depiction of the proposed project and not to serve as
final plans; and (2) the drawing was based on a site survey of the site, the Commission
finds that the site plans do not constitute inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information
having been provided to the Commission in connection with the CDP application.
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Test No.2: Would accurate and complete information have affected the
conditions or approval of the permit?

Contention:

The revocation request made no specific contention or provided information relative to
this point. However, from the general tenor of the revocation request, it can be inferred
that the assertion is being made that had a more recent depiction of the blufftop edge been
presented, the Commission would have concluded that no stable building site could be set
sufficiently back from the bluff edge to protect the structure from bluff retreat over the
life of the structure existed on the parcel. Presumably, the Commission would have then
denied the permit outright, or applied different conditions (e.g., reducing the size of the
proposed house and site improvements) to make the development as conditionally
approved consistent with the policies and standards of the certified local coastal program
and/or the access policies of Chapter 3 of the Coastal Act. '

Analysis:

As discussed in Test No. 1, above, the precision of the location of the bluffiop edge as
depicted on the application site plans does not play a crucial role in ensuring that the
development is constructed outside of areas susceptible to coastal erosion during the
economic lifespan of the structures. In both the staff report for the de novo hearing and in
testimony given therein, the Commission was apprised of the tentative nature of the
building locations as shown on the preliminary site plan with respect to the setback
recommendations within the BACE geologic investigation and the peer review report
prepared by Rogers/Pacific. The tentative nature of the preliminary plans was one of the
bases for the Commission attaching Special Condition No. 2 to require approval of
finalized site, drainage, and landscaping plans. In fact, when final plans were submitted
in August 2001, they depicted a bluff edge delineated from a new survey conducted in
1999, and not the bluff edge line derived from the 1990 survey. Accordingly, the lack of
precision on the site plans in depicting dated blufftop conditions did not affect the
approval of the project or the conditions attached thereto.

Test No.3: Was the erroneous or incomplete information supplied intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request contends that the use of dated topographic information in
developing the site plans submitted with the application was intentionally done to defraud
the Commission. By illustrating the location of the blufftop as existed in 1990 rather than
at the time of permit application, the revocation request suggests that the Commission
was misled regarding whether adequate area existed on the property such that the
proposed residential development could be located outside of geologically unstable areas.
The revocation request provides no further evidence to substantiate this claim.
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Analysis:

In this last criterion of the grounds for revocation, the revocation request asserts that
Matheson Design knowingly defrauded the Commission of accurate information in order
to obtain the permit. The revocation request, however, does not provide any direct
evidence that the applicants” agent had purposefully provided inaccurate information to
deceive the Commission by using a 1990 topographic survey as the basis for the site
plans rather than more contemporary data.

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to conclude that the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by drafting the site plans using dated information.
The revocation request does not establish that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information was intentionally provided to the Commission by the applicants. Therefore,
the revocation request must be denied on this basis alone. In addition, the Commission
finds that, whether or not the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied inaccurate or
erroneous information, this contention does not provide grounds for revocation because
as demonstrated above, the information was neither inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete,
and would not have affected the approval of the permit or the setting of conditions
thereto.

4. Visibility of Project Parcel from Public Parklands.

Test No. 1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information?

Contention:

Ms. Verran cites a statement in Mr. Matheson’s April 29, 1998 letter to the Commission
regarding the visibility of the Riley development from public parklands:

This parcel is not highly visible from any public land as only a small
portion of the house will be seen and no precedent will be set upon its
approval. [emphasis in original]

The revocation request supplement also contains two photographs taken from the Gualala
Point Regional Park looking northward. The Riley parcel is highlighted in green on these
photos, with an explanatory statement which reads:

Green overlays show the parcel from a memorial bench in Gualala Point
Regional Park and halfway along the beach in that park.; (sic) whole
proposed house would be seen. [parenthetical added]

Although no specific contention is made regarding the inaccurate, erroneous, or
incomplete nature of Mr. Matheson’s letter, from the context in which it was presented it
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can be deduced that the revocation request supplement is alleging the statement to be
inaccurate with respect to the true visibility of the project site from nearby public lands.

Analysis:

Based on the photographs provided in the revocation request supplement, the statement
made by the applicants’ agent regarding the visibility of the project parcel appears to be
erroneous. Clearly, much of the Riley parcel falls within the northward oblique vantage
from portions of the Gualala Point Regional Park. Accordingly, the Commission finds
the portion of the statement made by the applicants’ agent regarding the project parcel’s
visibility from public lands to be inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete notwithstanding
the degree to which the house would be screened by required landscaping.

.Test No.2: Would accurate and complete information have affected the
conditions or approval of the project?

Contention:

The revocation request supplement provides no specific contention with regard to this
test. However, given the overall tenor of the request, it can be presumed that Ms. Verran
is asserting that had the Commission been accurately apprised of the project site’s
visibility from portions of the Gualala Point Regional Park, the Commission would have
either denied the project or imposed different conditions to further reduce the project
impacts on views to and along the coast and to scenic coastal areas.

Analysis:

The issue of the visual compatibility of the proposed Riley residential development was
discussed at length in both the written findings within the project staff report as well as in
testimony given at the August 12, 1998 permit hearing. Throughout consideration of the
project the Commission was cognizant of the fact that development on the subject
property could not occur without alteration of the visual setting of the north Gualala area
resulting. That is, the project could not feasibly be developed in such a manner as to be
invisible from all viewing points on public lands. -

Consequently, the degree by which the new development imposed itself on views from
Gualala Point Regional Park was the Commission’s primary consideration in reviewing
the proposal’s effects on visual resources. In this case, the standard of review is
consistency with the relevant policies of the certified LCP, specifically LUP Policies 3.5-
1, 3.5-5, and Coastal Zoning Code Sections 20.504.020 and 20.504.035(a)(2) (see pp. 17-
19 of adopted findings, dated October 16, 1998). These polices and standards require
that permitted development: (1) be sited and designed to protect views to and along the
coast and to scenic areas; (2) minimize alteration of natural landforms; (3) be visually
compatible with the character of surrounding areas; (4) restore and enhance visually
degraded areas where feasible; (5) encourage tree planting for screening of new
development provided it does not block coastal views from public areas; (6) be within the
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scope and character of existing development in the surrounding neighborhood with
respect to height and bulk; (7) utilize building materials and exterior colors that are
compatible with existing nearby structures; and (8) shield or position lighting so as not to
shine light or allow glare to exceed the boundaries of the project parcel. These policies
and standards do not, however, require that new development be constructed so as to be
fully invisible from all nearby public lands.

In making these visual consistency determinations, the Commission considered numerous
exhibits in addition to Mr. Matheson’s letter at the permit hearings regarding the visibility
of the site and the proposed improvements from nearby parklands. Moreover, having
determined that mitigation was necessary to reduce the proposed development’s impact
on views from the Gualala Point Regional Park visitor center, the most heavily visited
portion of the park, the Commission attached Special Condition No. 3 to the project
approval requiring landscaping to screen the residence.

Thus, the description of the visual prominence of the Riley parcel from the Gualala Point
Regional Park as presented in Mr. Matheson’s letter of April 29, 1998 was not a
determining factor in the Commission’s findings regarding the compatibility of the
project with the visual resource protection policies and standards of the LCP. The
Commission therefore finds that this contention does not provide grounds for revocation
under Section 13105(a) because it does not show adequate or complete information
would have affected the conditions or the approval of the permit.

Test No. 3: Was the incomplete, erroneous, or incomplete information supplied
intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request supplement contains no specific contention or information relative
to this point. However, from the general context in which the allegation is presented, it
can be deduced that an allegation is being made that the applicants’ agent purposefully
misrepresented the degree by which the project site can be viewed from nearby public
lands to mislead the Commission into concluding that the development would not impact
visual resources and that views to and along the coast and to scenic coastal areas from
public parklands had been adequately protected.

Analysis:

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to conclude that the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by misstating that that the “parcel is not highly
visible from any public land.” The revocation request supplement does not provide any
direct evidence that the applicants’ agent had purposefully provided inaccurate
information to mislead the Commission by misstating the visibility of the project parcel
from portions of the Gualala Point Regional Park. The revocation request has thus not
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established that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information was intentionally
supplied. Therefore, the revocation request must be denied on this basis alone. In
addition, the Commission finds that, whether or not the applicants’ agent intentionally
supplied inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention does not provide grounds
for revocation because as demonstrated above, such information would not have affected
the conditions or the approval of the project.

5. Concurrence among Geologists on Site Stability.

TestNo.1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erromeous, or incomplete
information?

Contention:

In her revocation request of October 8, 2001, Ms. Verran states:

In Ralph Matheson’s 4/29/98 letter to the Commission he states that the
geotechnical experts ‘all... find the site to be sound and buildable and see
no problems with the proposed home.” The truth is that all saw problems
and made different recommendations, since they have different training
and experience. For example, Dr. J. David Rogers wrote in his report, p.
16, ‘Based upon the physical evidence for storm splash at this site, pulling
the house back as far as possible would seem to be a prudent precaution...
The old railroad right-of-way, cut into the natural bluffs behind the
proposed residence is a good area to avoid. It will continue to experience
shallow, localized slope failures, as occurred this last winter. These
failures will eventually ravel upslope, and enlarge in volume.

Analysis:

In order for the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point,
the Commission would have to conclude that inaccurate or erroneous information had
been provided to the Commission. The Commission does not find it necessary to reach a
conclusion on this point. The Commission finds that, whether or not the correspondence
presented on behalf of the applicants contained inaccurate or erroneous information, this
contention does not provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated below, even
if the information was inaccurate or erroneous the information would not have affected
the approval of the permit or the conditions thereto, and because the revocation request
does not establish the applicants intentionally presented such information to the
Commission.

Test No.2: Would accurate and complete information have affected the
conditions or approval of the project?
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Contention:
In her October 8, 2001 letter, Ms. Verran states:

With true and complete information from Matheson, the Commission
could have taken note of the two Rogers caveats and required a smaller
house that could be pulled back from the wave splash without impacting
the RR grade. The Commission could have required an evaluation of
wave damage potential from an engineer with expertise in that field.

Analysis:

The Commission must determine if accurate and complete information would have
affected the conditions or the approval of the permit. The revocation request contends
that had Mr. Matheson accurately portrayed the degree of concern among the geologists
regarding the soundness, stability, and potential for exposure to geologic and water-borne
hazards at the site in his letter, the Commission could have required a smaller house or
would have required that additional wave run-up studies be conducted which may have
affected permit approval or the setting of conditions.

In making this determination, the Commission again makes notes of the role written
correspondence of a general nature play in the Commission’s consideration of the merits
of a given development project. For a more precise understanding of the suitability of the
project site with respect to geologic hazards and unstable areas, the Commission relies on
the conclusions and recommendations of geologic reports rather than the general
comments contained within an advocacy letter submitted by the project applicants’ agent.
Similar to the discussion within the analysis of Test No. 2 for Revocation Request
Contention No. 2, above, the geologic investigation prepared for the project clearly
addresses the potential hazards of wave exposure at the site. Moreover, as cited above,
the benefits of locating the house in the most landward feasible location (i.e., without
encroaching into the railroad bed cut) was specifically addressed within the
Rogers/Pacific geotechnical investigation peer review report and incorporated within
special conditions attached to the permit approval by the Commission.

Accordingly, regardless of any inaccuracies that may have been contained within written
correspondence presented by the applicants’ agent at the permit hearing, Mr. Matheson’s
statement regarding the supposed concurrence among all the geologists as to the
suitability of the site and lack of concern over proposed development at the site was not a
determining factor in the Commission’s consideration of the project. The exhibits and
findings in the Commission’s adopted findings clearly demonstrate that the Commission
understood that the house would be exposed to potential wave up-splash and, to minimize
this risk, needed to be sited as far landward as practicable. The Commission therefore
finds that this contention does not provide grounds for revocation under Section 13105(a)
because it does not show accurate and complete information would have affected the
conditions or the approval of the project.
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Test No.3: Was the incomplete, erroneous, or incomplete information supplied
intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request supplement contains no specific contention or information relative
to this point. However, from the general context in which the allegation is presented, it
can be deduced that an allegation is being made that the applicants’ agent purposefully
misrepresented the stability and safety of the project site relative to geologic and flood
hazards to mislead the Commission into concluding that the proposed design of the
development would not be exposed to geologic hazards or instigate geologic instability.

Analysis:

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to conclude that the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by misrepresenting that all geologists reviewing the
project had concluded the site to be sound and buildable and saw no problems with the
proposed home. The revocation request supplement does not provide any direct evidence
that the applicants’ agent had purposefully provided inaccurate information to mislead
the Commission by misstating the degree of concurrence among geologic experts. The
revocation request has thus not established that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information was intentionally supplied. Therefore, the revocation request must be denied
on this basis alone. In addition, the Commission finds that, whether or not the applicants’
agent intentionally supplied inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention does not
provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated above, the information would
not have affected the approval or the conditions of the permit.

6. Highly Scenic Area Status.

Test No.1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information?

Contention:

In her October 8, 2001 letter to the Commission Ms. Verran further states that Mr.
Matheson’s statement is “true but misleading,” explaining that the project area is located
within a “neighborhood of special concern,” under Section 20.504 of the Mendocino
County Coastal Zoning Code which “protects public viewsheds AND historic resources.”
[emphasis in original]

Analysis:

In order for the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point,
the Commission would have to conclude that inaccurate or erroneous information had
been provided to the Commission. The Commission does not find it necessary to reach a
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conclusion on this point. The Commission finds that, whether or not the correspondence
presented on behalf of the applicants contained inaccurate or erroneous information, this
contention does not provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated below, the
information would not have affected the approval of the permit or the conditions thereto,
and because the revocation request does not establish that the applicants intentionally
presented inaccurate or erroneous information to the Commission.

Test No.2: Would accurate and complete information have affected the
conditions or approval of the project?

Contention:

Ms. Verran contends that had the Commission known the project site was located within
a neighborhood of special concern, “the Commission could have required an evaluation
of the historic structures on the site, some of which have been damaged by the grading or
are at risk.”

Analysis:

Mr. Matheson’s statement does not directly speak to the status of the project site within a
special communities and neighborhood area or the project’s compliance with CZC
Section 20.504.020(C), only whether the site is located within one of the highly scenic
areas as delineated on the Land Use Maps of the County’s certified LUP. Nevertheless, it
is plausible that the statement could be read as suggesting that the project would not
significantly affect public coastal views required to be protected within the scope of
Section 20.504.020.

With respect to this issue of project impacts on visual resources, including views from
public parklands, the proposed Riley residential development was discussed at length in
both the written findings within the project staff report as well as in testimony given at
the August 12, 1998 permit hearing. Furthermore, in making findings about the
consistency of the project with the visual policies of the LCP, the Commission considered
numerous exhibits in addition to Mr. Matheson’s letter relative to the visibility of the site
and the proposed improvements from nearby parklands. Moreover, as stated above in the
analysis of Test No. 2 for Revocation Request Contention No. 4, having determined that
mitigation was necessary to reduce the proposed development’s impact on views from the
Gualala Point Regional Park visitor center, the most heavily visited portion of the park,
the Commission attached Special Condition No. 3 to the project approval requiring
landscaping to screen the residence. The Commission specifically found that as
conditioned, the project is consistent with Section 20.504.020(C) of the Coastal Zoning
Code .

Thus, the description of the Riley parcel as not being within a listed highly scenic area as
presented in Mr. Matheson’s letter of April 29, 1998 was not a determining factor in the
Commission’s findings regarding the compatibility of the project with the visual resource
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protection policies and standards of the LCP. The Commission therefore finds that this
contention does not provide grounds for revocation under Section 13105(a) because it
does not show adequate or complete information would have affected the conditions or
the approval of the permit.

Test No.3: Was the incomplete, erroneous, or incomplete information supplied
intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request supplement contains no specific contention or information relative
to this point. However, from the general context in which the allegation is presented, it
can be deduced that an allegation is being made that the applicants’ agent purposefully
misrepresented the status of the project site relative to its location within the designed
Gualala Special Communities and Neighborhoods area to understate the significance of
the visual and historic resources impacts of the development lack of compliance with
CZC Section 20.504.020(C).

Analysis:

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to concludé that the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by misrepresenting the status of the project site
within the Gualala Special Communities and Neighborhoods area. The revocation
request supplement does not provide any direct evidence that the applicants’ agent had
purposefully withheld information to mislead the Commission by failing to include
within his statement regarding the site not being listed within a highly scenic area that
other policies for the protection of public views and historic resources applied to the site.
The revocation request has thus not established that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information was intentionally supplied. Therefore, the revocation request must be denied
on this basis alone. In addition, the Commission finds that, whether or not the applicants’
agent intentionally supplied inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention does not
provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated above, the information would
not have affected the approval of the permit or the setting of conditions thereto.

7. Comparative House Sizes.

Test No.1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information?

Contention:

Ms. Verran states in her October 8, 2001 letter to the Commission:

Matheson wrote, same letter, ‘The subject terrace has a total of five
residential lots --- and three of those lots have existing homes. And, the
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Riley home is smaller than some of them.” He shows the Swegle house in
Robinson Point on his attached drawing as 5,000 sf. This home recently
sold and was listed on the Master Property Description as 2,300 sf.

Analysis:

To accurately assess whether the proposed residence is smaller than other residences in
the immediate neighborhood as Mr. Matheson contends, a set of scalable drawings of the
various house designs within the Robinson Point area are needed. As information
regarding the precise size of the other area residential developments approved in the past
by either the County or the Commission are not part of the record for the development
appealed to the Commission, the Commission is unable to reach a conclusion at this time
as to the veracity of Mr. Matheson’s statement. Nonetheless, the Commission does not
find it necessary to reach a conclusion on this point. The Commission finds that, whether
or not the applicants’ agent supplied inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention
does not provide grounds for revocation because, as demonstrated in the following test
for valid grounds, even if the information was inaccurate or erroneous, the information
would not have affected the approval or conditions of the permit and because the
revocation request does not demonstrate that the applicant intentionally provided any
inaccurate information.

Test No.2: Would accurate and complete information have affected the
conditions or approval of the project?

Contention:

Ms. Verran continues in her October 8, 2001 letter to state:

With correct information about the size of existing homes, the
Commission could have required a smaller Riley house, in accordance
with CZC 20.504.020.

Analysis:

The Commission must determine if accurate and complete information would have
affected the conditions or the approval of the permit. The revocation request contends
that had Mr. Matheson accurately portrayed the true size of the residential development
relative to the Swegle residence in his letter presented at the permit hearing the

Commission would have attached different or additional permit conditions in accordance
with CZC Section 20.504.020.

Zoning Code Section 20.504.020, Special Communities and Neighborhoods, refers to
several communities including Gualala, and sets forth development criteria for those
areas. Section 20.504.020(C) states that the scale of new development (building height
and bulk) shall be within the scope and character of existing development in the
surrounding neighborhood, that new development shall be sited such that public coastal
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views are protected, and that building materials and exterior colors shall be compatible
with those of existing structures.

With respect to the Commission’s analysis as to whether a new development is within the
“scope and character of existing development within the surrounding area” as required
under Section 20.504.020(C), the assessment does not necessitate comparing the precise
square-footage of the proposed development with other site improvements within the
nearby area. While having such detailed such information available may be helpful, the
determination is generally made based upon a more qualitative analysis of the overall
makeup of structures with the project site vicinity area in terms of: (a) the types of land
uses they are put to; (b) the range in their size and bulk, usual stated in an order-of-
magnitude of thousands of square feet; (c) the typical number of stories; and, in some
instances, (d) their architectural style. An important consideration is also the degree to
which the project as conditioned would be visible from public vantage points. As relates
to this coastal resource issue, the Commission adopted findings for conditional approval
of the Riley project concluding:

The Commission finds that it is larger in terms of height and bulk than
many surrounding residences, and due to its location on the lower coastal
bluff, would be quite visible from most portions of the Gualala Point
Regional Park in Sonoma County to the south, including from the public
beach. While there are a number of other houses nearby on the bluffs
above the subject site that are somewhat visible from the public park and
beach, the proposed development would be one of the only houses on the
lower terrace, and would be very noticeable due to its size and prominent
location on the virtually undeveloped terrace. [“Visual Resources, p.16]

From these conclusions, the Commission attached special conditions to the permit
approval setting limits on the design of the project’s exterior appearance and removal of
trees at the site, and requiring landscaping. The landscaping was required to screen the
residence from view from Gualala Point Regional Park. As stated above in the analysis
of Test No. 2 for Revocation Request Contention No. 4, and again in the analysis of Test
No. 2 of Revocation Request Contention No. 6, these conditions were included
specifically to mitigate the project’s potential inconsistency with the standards of Section
20.504.020(C). ‘

Accordingly, regardless of whatever inaccuracies may have been contained within
written correspondence presented by the applicants’ agent at the permit hearing, these
items were largely summary of the reasons why, in the opinion of the applicants’ agent,
the Commission should find the project as proposed to be consistent with applicable LCP
and Coastal Act policies. Consequently, the comments within Mr. Matheson’s letter
were not a determining factor in the Commission’s consideration of the project. The
exhibits and findings in the Commission’s adopted findings demonstrate that the
Commission understood that relative size of the proposed Riley home compared with
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existing residences in the Robinson Point neighborhood, and that the Commission
imposed conditions to mitigate the visual impact of the larger size of the house. The
Commission therefore finds that this contention does not provide grounds for revocation
under Section 13105(a) because it does not show accurate and complete information
would have affected the conditions or the approval of the project.

Test No. 3: ~Was the incomplete, erroneous, or incomplete information supplied
intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request supplement contains no specific contention or information relative
to this point. However, from the general context in which the allegation is presented, it
can be deduced that an allegation is being made that the applicants’ agent purposefully
misrepresented the relative size of the proposed residence compared to other houses
within the Robinson Point neighborhood to mislead the Commission into concluding that
the scale of the development (height and bulk) would be within the scope and character
of the surrounding neighborhood, in compliance with CZC Section 20.504.020(C)(1).

Analysis:

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to conclude that the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by misrepresenting the size of the proposed Riley
home compared with that of an existing residence in the neighboring area. The
revocation request supplement does not provide any direct evidence that the applicants’
agent had purposefully provided inaccurate information to mislead the Commission by
misstating the size of the Swegle home. The revocation request has thus not established
that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information was intentionally supplied.
Therefore, the revocation request must be denied on this basis alone. In addition, the
Commission finds that, whether or not the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention does not provide grounds for
revocation because as demonstrated above, the information would not have affected the
approval of the permit or conditions thereto.

8. Proximity of Sea Caves to Building Site.

Test No.1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information? ’

Contention:

In her October 8, 2001 letter to the Commission, Ms. Verran states:

Matheson wrote, same letter, ‘The 'sea caves' are not directly under the
building site, but in the sandstone cliffs that ramble up to the terrace
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level.” ... When I examined the Paoli blueprint in Fort Bragg, I noted that
the well into the sea cave marked on the blueprint was very near the
former northwest part of the Riley house plan...

Analysis:

In order for the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point,
the Commission would have to conclude that inaccurate or erroneous information had
been provided to the Commission. The Commission does not find it necessary to reach a
conclusion on this point. The Commission finds that, whether or not the correspondence
presented on behalf of the applicants contained inaccurate or erroneous information, this
contention does not provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated below, even
if the information was inaccurate or erroneous, the information would not have affected
the approval of the permit or the conditions thereto, and because the revocation request
does not establish that the applicants intentionally presented incomplete or erroneous
information to the Commission.

Test No.2: Would accurate and complete information have affected the
conditions or approval of the project?

Contention:

Ms. Verran continues in her October 8, 2001 letter to the Commission to state:

Had the Commission been correctly and completely informed in 1998 by
applicants and their agents that sea caves did indeed penetrate under the
vegetated bluff and under or near the house site, they could have denied
the permit altogether and sought public acquisition of the property as too
hazardous to build on.

Analysis:

The Commission must determine if accurate and complete information would have
affected the conditions or the approval of the permit. The revocation request contends
that had Mr. Matheson accurately portrayed in his letter the true location of the
residential development on the terrace relative to the extent of sea caves at-depth the
Commission would have attached different or additional permit conditions, or denied the
permit.

In making this determination, the Commission makes notes of the role written
correspondence plays in the Commission’s consideration of the merits of a given
development project. Correspondence and other exhibits containing information of a
general nature, such as those in which the revocation request alleges contains inaccurate
information, carry relatively less significance compared with other, more detailed
application materials. For example, a written synopsis of the reasons why, in the opinion
of the writer, a development project should be approved serves to categorically
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summarize the issues of project consistency before the Commission. For a more precise
understanding of the issues bearing on the approval, conditional approval, or denial of a
project, the Commission relies on a variety of detailed information materials, including
the analysis within the staff report findings, plan- and elevation-view site maps,
quantitative technical studies (e.g., geologic investigations, wetland delineations), and
other qualitative data on coastal resources (e.g., prescriptive access surveys,
neighborhood architectural surveys) potentially affected by the development.

To this end, the staff report for the Riley de novo hearing included copies of the various
geo-technical analyses of the project site, prepared both before and subsequent to Mr.
Matheson’s letter addressing the sea caves and the effect their presence would have on
site stability. In addition, the Commission’s findings presented summary discussions of
the extent of the sea caves beneath the terrace building site and the effect the caves had
on blufftop stability gleaned from these investigations, letter-reports, and reviews:

With regard to the extent of the sea caves beneath the terrace building site:

Dr. Rogers thus concludes that although the largest of the so-called ‘sea
caves’ extends as much as 30 feet beneath the exposed cliff face, these
openings are only a few feet wide. [“Geologic Hazards, - Sea Caves” p.
12]

In response to Ms. Verran’s assertion that not fully investigating the extent of all sea
caves on the property had resulted in the site stability analysis being compromised:

The appellant had also asserted that the evaluations of sea caves
conducted by Dr. Rogers were inadequate because each of the various sea
caves was not explored, particularly those north of the ‘third promontory.’
In his July 13, 1998 report (Exhibit 25), Dr. Rogers explains that the caves
that were inspected were selected for study because they appeared to be
the ‘most pervasive, extending furthest into the cliffs, and are situated
closest to the proposed house site on the Riley parcel.’ [“Geologic
Hazards, - Sea Caves” p. 13; parenthetical in original]

With respect to the potential instability of constructing the proposed house on a site in
proximity to the sea caves beneath the terrace, the Commission’s findings cite the
conclusion within the geologic investigation peer review report regarding this issue:

Dr. Rogers further concludes that ‘the physical position of the caves,
between 35 and 75 feet below the grade of the exposed terrace (building
site), is such that [it] is extremely doubtful these features pose any real
threat to a structure designed for a 75-year lifespan.’ [“Geologic Hazards,
- Sea Caves” p. 12]



R-A-1-MEN-97-046
RILEY, DAVID AND KATHRYN
Page 34

Therefore, regardless of any inaccuracies that may have been contained within the subject
letter presented at the permit hearing, the statements only represent a summary of the
reasons why, in the opinion of the applicants’ agent, the Commission should find the
project to be consistent with applicable LCP and Coastal Act policies. Consequently, the
comments within Mr. Matheson’s letter were not a determinative factor in the
Commission’s consideration of the project. The exhibits and findings in the
Commission’s adopted findings demonstrate that the Commission fully understood that
the house would be: (a) constructed in proximity to underlying sea caves and (b) located
on a building site determined by expert geologic analyses to be stable for an estimated
75-year economic lifespan in spite of its proximity to the underlying sea caves. The
Commission therefore finds that this contention does not provide grounds for revocation
under Section 13105(a) because it does not show accurate and complete information
would have affected the conditions or the approval of the project.

Test No.3: Was the incomplete, erroneous, or incomplete information supplied
intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request supplement contains no specific contention or information relative
to this point. However, from the general context in which the allegation is presented, it
can be deduced that an allegation is being made that the applicants’ agent purposefully
misrepresented the subterranean extent of the sea caves relative to the blufftop location of
the building site to mislead the Commission into concluding that the project would not be
exposed to or instigate geologic instability.

Analysis:

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to conclude that the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by misrepresenting the true extent of the sea caves
beneath the bluff relative to the proposed building site. The revocation request
supplement does not provide any direct evidence that the applicants’ agent had
purposefully provided inaccurate information to mislead the Commission by misstating
the degree of encroachment of the caves beneath the building site. The revocation
request has thus not established that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information was
intentionally supplied. Therefore, the revocation request must be denied on this basis
alone. In addition, the Commission finds that, whether or not the applicants’ agent
intentionally supplied inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention does not
provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated above, the information would
not have affected the approval of the permit or the setting of conditions thereto.
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9, Project Controversy.

Test No.1: Did the applicant include inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete
information?

Contention:

In her October 8, 2001 letter to the Commission, Ms. Verran states:

Matheson wrote, same letter, ‘The neighbors closest to the site are on
record to not opposing the project.” The Verran house is the closest to the
site. At the time of the 1998 hearings, of the seven lots contiguous to the
long, narrow Riley lot, only one was owned by a supporter of the project,
Mr. Heckert. The Hathcoats and the Stouts (The Sheridans, who are
opposed, now own this house) initially wrote letters opposing the project,
then went neutral. Letters of opposition were on the record from the
Stillmans, the Brittsan/Knight family, and the Hoffmans. In the
neighborhood there was opposition from Ms. Sellinger, the Bennets and
the Van de Waters. Some people wrote from 20 or more years of personal
knowledge of the Riley lot. Owners of the Bower, Harris and Hewitt
houses supported the project. Only two homes on lots contiguous to the
Riley lot, Hathcoat and Verran are lived in full time.

Analysis:

In order for the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point,
the Commission would have to conclude that inaccurate or erroneous information had
been provided to the Commission. The Commission does not find it necessary to reach a
conclusion on this point. The Commission finds that, whether or not the correspondence
presented on behalf of the applicants contained inaccurate or erroneous information, this
contention does not provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated below, even
if the information was inaccurate or erroneous, the information would not have affected
the approval of the permit or the conditions thereto, and because the revocation request
does not establish that applicants intentionally presented inaccurate or erroneous
information to the Commission.

Test No.2: Would accurate and complete information have affected the
conditions or approval of the project?

Contention:

The revocation request made no specific contention or provided information relative to
this point. However, from the general tenor of the revocation request, it can be inferred
that the revocation request is asserting that had the Commission known of the amount of
concern for the project among owners and residents within the surrounding
neighborhood, the Commission would have concluded that the proposed development
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was in some way incompatible with the site. In such an instance the Commission would
have likely either denied the permit or included other conditions limiting the size or
location of the site improvements.

Analysis:

The degree of opposition to a project, or conversely, the amount of support for a project
among persons residing or owning property within close proximity to a proposed coastal
development is not a criterion used by the Commission in considering action on a permit
application. The Commission’s review of coastal development permit applications is
dependent upon whether the project is consistent with the policies and standards of the
County of Mendocino’s LCP and the access and recreation policies of the Coastal Act.
Neither the County LCP of the relevant sections of the Coastal Act contain provisions for
the consideration of amount of controversy, support for, or opposition to a given
development proposal. Accordingly, the amount of support for the project or the lack of
opposition to the project did not affect the approval of the project or the conditions
attached thereto. '

Test No.3: Was the incomplete, erroneous, or incomplete information supplied
intentionally?

Contention:

The revocation request supplement contains no specific contention or information relative
to this point. However, from the general context in which the allegation is presented, it
can be deduced that an allegation is being made that the applicants’ agent purposefully
misrepresented the degree of support for the project to mislead the Commission into
concluding that the proposed project had garmered a relatively small amount of
controversy and this would somehow cause the Commission to favorably consider
approval of the project.

Analysis:

For the Commission to find grounds for revocation of the permit on this point, the
Commission would have to conclude that the applicants’ agent intentionally supplied
inaccurate or erroneous information by misrepresenting that neighboring owners and/or
residents in close proximity to the project site were on record as not opposing the project.
The revocation request supplement does not provide any direct evidence that the
applicants’ agent had purposefully provided inaccurate information to mislead the
Commission by misstating the degree of support for the project. The revocation request
has thus not established that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information was
intentionally supplied. Therefore, the revocation request must be denied on this basis
alone. In addition, the Commission finds that, whether or not the applicants’ agent
intentionally supplied inaccurate or erroneous information, this contention does not
provide grounds for revocation because as demonstrated above, the information would
not have affected the approval of the permit or the conditions thereto.
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G. Due Diligence.

Section 13108(d) establishes that the Commission must deny a revocation request that
has not been filed with due diligence. As it may take some time to prepare a request, or
for the particular incident upon which the revocation request is based to become evident
and/or be discovered, the Commission has accepted requests submitted at various times
after permit approval. In this case, the permit was approved on August 12, 1998.

On October 5, 1998, the Commission offices received from Ms. Verran, the person
requesting revocation, her first letter, dated September 29-30, 1998, requesting revocation
of the permit based on the grounds that inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information
had been provided at the August 12 permit hearing. Within these submitted materials
were statements indicating that more materials regarding the revocation request would be
forthcoming. The Commission finds that this revocation request was submitted with due
diligence as it was submitted shortly after the Commission’s action on the project and
written just several days after the staff report recommending Commission adoption of
revised findings for the project was published by the staff on September 25, 1998.
Knowledge of the proposed or adopted findings is necessary for establishing the basis for
the Commission’s action on the project on August 12, 1998 and determining whether a
contention that the applicants presented inaccurate, erroneous, or incomplete information
would have affected the Commission’s approval of the project or the conditions the
Commission chose to impose.

A second revocation request letter from Ms. Verran was subsequently received on
September 10, 2001 alleging that additional incomplete information had been provided at
the August 12, 1998 hearing. Additional contentions involving grounds for revocation
were also submitted by mail on October 2, 2001, and at the Commission’s October 11,
2001 hearing on the revocation request. The fact that these letters supplementing the
revocation request were submitted much later does not alter the fact that the initial
revocation request was originally submitted in a timely manner. Therefore, the
Commission find that the revocation request was filed with due diligence. Denial of the
revocation request is not based on issues of due diligence.

H. Overall Conclusion.

The Commission denies the revocation request for Coastal Development Permit No. A-1-
MEN-97-046, the construction of the Riley single-family residence, attached
subterranean garage, and site improvements, because the revocation request does not
establish the grounds identified in Section 13105(a) of the Commission’s administrative
regulations for any of its contentions.
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III. EXHIBITS:

1. Location Maps

2. Excerpt, Commission’s Administrative Regulations (14 CCR §§13104-13108)

3. Revocation Request from Julie Verran for CDP A-1-MEN-97-046, dated
September 29-30, 1998

4, Response Letter from Jo Ginsberg to Julia Verran, dated October 8, 1998

5. Revocation Request Letter from Julie Verran for CDP A-1-MEN-97-046, dated
September 5, 2001

6. Revocation Request Letter from Julie Verran for CDP A-1-MEN-97-046, dated
October 2, 2001

7. Revocation Request Letter from Julie Verran for CDP A-1-MEN-97-046, dated
October 8, 2001

8. Portion, Site Plan, conditionally approved by Commission on August 12, 1998

9. Portion, Final Site Plan, approved by Executive Director on August 6, 2001

10.  Due Diligence Letters from Julie Verran for Revocation Request R-A-1-MEN-97-

046, dated September 23 & 30, 2001
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TITLE 14, Division 5.5 NexxBTNO. 2
California Coastal Commission Administrative Regulation:
Page 29 ] APPLICATION NO.
- |R-A-1-MEN-97-046
calendar, the public hearing on the item shall be continued until it can be: %ﬁ%ﬁm ((1:o°f 2)
permit calendar. ~ [ADMiIN. REGS. (14
CCR §§ 13104-13108)

Article 16. Revocation of Permits
§ 13104, Scope of Article.

The provisions of this article shall govern proceedings for revocation of a coastal development permit
previously granted by a regional commission or the commission.

§ 13105. Grounds for Revocation.
Grounds for revocation of a permit shall be:

(a) Intentional inclusion of inaccurate, erroneous or incomplete information in connection with a
coastal development permit application, where the commission finds that accurate and complete
information would have caused the commission to require additional or different conditions on a
permit or deny an application;

(b) Failure to comply with the notice provisions of Section 13054, where the views of the person(s)
not notified were not otherwise made known to the commission and could have caused the
commission to require additional or different conditions on a permit or deny an application.

§ 13106. Initiation of Proceedings.

Any person who did not have an opportunity to fully participate in the original permit proceeding by
reason of the permit applicant's intentional inclusion of inaccurate information or failure to provide
adequate public notice as specified in Section 13105 may request revocation of a permit by
application to the executive director of the commission specifying, with particularity, the grounds for
revocation. The executive director shall review the stated grounds for revocation and, unless the
request is patently frivolous and without merit, shall initiate revocation proceedings. The executive
director may initiate revocation proceedings on his or her own motion when the grounds for
revocation have been established pursuant to the provisions of Section 13105.

§ 13107. Suspension of Permit.

Where the executive director determines in accord with Section 13106, that grounds exist for
revocation of a permit, the operation of the permit shall be automatically suspended until the
commission votes to deny the request for revocation. The executive director shall notify the permittee
by mailing a copy of the request for revocation and a summary of the procedures set forth in this
article, to the address shown in the permit application. The executive director shall also advise the
applicant in writing that any development undertaken during suspension of the permit may be in
violation of the California Coastal Act of 1976 and subject to the penalties set forth in Public
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. Resources Code, Sections 30820 through 30823.
§ 13108. Hearing on Revocation.
(a) At the next regularly scheduled meeting, and after notice to the permittee and any persons the
executive director has reason to know would be interested in the permit or revocation, the executive

director shall report the request for revocation to the commission with a preliminary recommendation
on the merits of the request.

(b) The person requesting the revocation shall be afforded a reasonable time to present the request and
the permittee shall be afforded a like time for rebuttal.

(c) The commission shall ordinarily vote on the request at the same meeting, but the vote may be
postponed to a subsequent meeting if the commission wishes the executive director or the Attorney
General to perform further investigation.

(d) A permit may be revoked by a majority vote of the members of the commission present if it finds
that any of the grounds specified in section 13105 exist. If the commission finds that the request for

revocation was not filed with due diligence, it shall deny the request.

§ 13108.5. Finality of Regional Commission Decision.
. Repealed
Article 17. Reserved
§ 13109. Reapplication.
Repealed.
Article 18. Reconsideration
§ 13109.1. Scope of Article.
The provisions of this article shall govern proceedings for reconsideration of terms or conditions of a
coasta% Qevelopment permit granted or of a denial of a coastal development permit by the
commission.
§ 13109.2. Initiation of Proceedings.
(a) Any time within thirty (30) days following a final vote upon an application for a coastal

development permit, the applicant of record may request the commission to grant reconsideration of
. the denial of an application for a coastal development permit or of any term or condition of a coastal

NG



J. Verran, P.O. Box 382
Gualala, CA 95445-0382
September 29, 1998

Deputy Director Steve Scholl

California Coastal Commission

North Coast Area, 45 Fremont, Suite 2000
San Francisco, CA 94105-2219

Re: A-1-97-46 MEN

Dear Deputy Director Scholl,

To follow up on our earlier phone conversation, I still wish to pursue a revocation of the
Commission’s action on my appeal. You advised me to get a copy of the relevant administrative
code sections from the Commission’s Web Site, but this did not work. Can you please have your
staff mail me a copy? Also, please ask them to send me a copy of the official tape of the August
12 hearing on my appeal in Huntington Beach, plus a tape of the public comment period on
August 13, in case Mr. Matheson or Mr. Heckert commented on that day. Enclosed is a check for
$20 which should cover multiple tapes. I did tape the hearing myself (but not the closed session);
the quality was not good and your voice did not come through well.

Enclosed is a list of the slides which you kept August 12. I had intended to get duplicates
made and send them in with a list. I hope you also retained the cardboard drawing which Mr.
Matheson showed, since it is an example of false facts presented by applicants which may have
influenced the Commissicn.

Also enclosed is a copy of a letter from applicants to their former architect, dismissing
him in November, 1994. It is CCd to your staff. I wrote to Ms. Ginsberg prior to the August
hearing and requested a copy of the file to which this letter pertained, but she did not send it. The
questions are: Did applicants or their architect make enquiries to your staff, or was there a prior
appeal or prior complaints to the staff about this project?

Finally, enclosed is the first part, relating to blueprints, of my analysis supporting a
request for revocation of the Commission’s August 12 action on my appeal.

2 Y _

///J/ ie Verran
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Re: A-1-97-46 MEN

Request for Revocation of California Coastal Commission action on my appeal August 12, 1998
Submitted by Julie Verran, September 30, 1998.

I. Examination of Blueprints.

On September 25, 1998, I examined blueprints for the two Riley proposed houses, one a
log home planned in 1994, the other the current design planned in 1997. The Rileys and the
owners of the contiguous parcel to the south which is reached by the same steep access road both
obtained Coastal Development Permits from Mendocino County in 1994, but did not build. The
CDPs expired. Rileys were granted a CDP for a new design in 1997, which I appealed.

On August 12, 1998, at the hearing on my appeal in Huntington Beach, attorney Frank
Bacik, acting for the Rileys, repeatedly stated that the 1997 design was smaller than the 1994
design.

County staff said they could not photocopy parts of the blueprints because they might be
copyrighted; the blueprints are available for public viewing in their respective 1994 and 1997
folders at the Mendocino County Planning and Building Department office on South Franklin
Street in Fort Bragg.

The same base map is used for both blueprints. The legal description of the property is
APN 145-181-01. The map is, “Site plan based on topographic survey prepared by D.N. Mc-
Adam RCE 8090 dated 5-2-90.” The map was thus seven years old at the time it was used for the
Matheson design. It did not, and does not show the current blufftop vegetated edge. I have
submitted to Commission and staff vertical aerial photos showing that there has been blufftop
retreat since 1990, but applicants have not updated their base map. Therefore, they knowingly
submitted false or incomplete information to the Commission, lacking the crucial edge from
which a setback must be taken.

The 1994 plan, for the Hart Engineering Group design, states on sheet A1.2 that Cover-
age is building = 2,230 sf and paved area = 2,257 sf, Total = 4,487 sf.

The 1997 plan, for the Ralph Matheson design, states on sheet Al.1 that Coverage is
building = 2,982 sf, paved area (drive) = 2,700 sf, walks, patio, etc = 500 sf, Total = 6,182 sf.

The new plan at 6,182 sf coverage is substantially larger than the 1994 plan at 4,437 sf
coverage.

Therefore, applicants and their agents knowingly submitted false information to the
Commission. Since their designer, Mr. Matheson, prepared the new blueprints, he was surely
aware of the true dimensions and could have informed Mr. Bacik.

The blueprints for the Matheson design show the house with a slab elevation of 62' above
sea level. next floor at 71", top floor at 80", and roof ridge elevation 93.6'. Yet, at the August 12,
1998 hearing, Mr. Matheson displayedfor about 10 minutes a large drawing which showed the
proposed house located far below the Verran house and out on a terrace above the sea. In fact the
house would cut into the slope below the Verran and Stout/Sheridan houses, compromising their
lateral support, and the roofline would reach to approximately the first floor level of those up-
slope homes, appearing three stories high from the public beach and park. Therefore, applicants’
agent knowing provided false information to the Commission in the form of that drawing.

More sections to follow.

N R
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RESPONSE LETTER FROM
JO GINSBERG, TO J.

VERRAN, DATED
10/9/98

3 Cctober 1998

Julie Verran
P.O. Box 382
Gualala, CA 9544:5-0382

RE: Coastal Permit No. A-1-MEN-97-46 (Rilev)
Dezr Ms. Verran:

[ am responding to vour letter o Steve Scholl dated 28 September 1998, [ will uv to
address all vour concerns in my response below.

Per vour request. [ am sending vou copies of the relevant pages fom the administrative

regulations regarding revocation. If vou wish a copy of the entire regulations, piease
sead us a check in the amount of 37.00 made pavabie to the California Coastal
Commission.

Conceming rour request for tapes, aithcugh vou indicate in vour letter that vou have
enclosed 820, there was no check in the envelope. If vou wish us to send you copies of
the tapes for the Rileyv appeal heard on August 12, 1998 (two tapes) and for the pubiic
comment period on August 13, 1998 (one tape), please send us a check in the amount of
$15 for the thres tapes.

[ do not fully understand vour questions regarding the letter sent to the applicants’ former
architect. nor does it seem relevant 1o vour revocation request. ‘We have one file in our
office ‘or the Rilev appeal. and that file contains a number of folders. [n these folders are
all the materiais associateq with the appeal. including all correspondence sent to this
orfice. [t is net ciear “hat ponion ot this file vou wish to obtain. If vou want to make an
ippointment t0 ¢come n and review the unnre contents of these foiders. please call me 0
arrange such an cppointment. As far as [ am aware, 2rior to vour appeal of the Riley
sroject. 10 one other than ou had made any inauiries 0 sur orfice regarding he project
20t vas there anv other ippeai or compiaint
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Finally, concerning vour desire o iile a revocation request, it is not clear from vour letter
whether you consider the materials you have submitted thus far which accompany your
letter of 29 September 1998 1o constitute vour whole revocarion request, or if you intend
to submit additicnal materials that you want to be considered as part of the request. The
last line of vour letter simply states “More sections to follow.” Please let us know if we
should expect additional materials concerning your revocation request.

Sincerelv,

JO GINSBERG
Coastal Planner

Enclosure



EXHIBIT NO. >

- } APPLICATION NO.
— " | R-A-1-MEN-97-046 .
i o i 7§ REVOCATION REQUEST
Z+ = . - | FROM J. VERRAN FOR
o A-1- .G7- o CDP A-1-MEN-97-046,
September 5, 2001 Reference: A-1-MEN-87-046 ~ = <o | DATED 9/5/01

Robert Merill, North Coast Manager :
California Coastal Commiszion S
P.O. Box 4908

Eureka, CA 95502-4908

Dear Mr. Merrill, (o the attention of Commissicners)

The project now being graded on the Riley propetty is not the one approved by the Commission
on August 12, 1998. The site of the house is about 30 feet southeast of the approved position, bringing it
farther up the slope and closer 1o the town, park and Highway 1. This change will cause the project 1o have
& more negative effect on the broad public viewshed than the Commissioners anticipated in 1988. The
grading is more extensive than was done in any of the seven house projects west of Highway 1 in Gualala
irn the past few years. It amounts 10 a substantial aiteration of a coastal landform.

The change in house position aiso brings it closer 10 the upsiope houses and has led to removal
¢f more of the slope that provides their laterai suppert. Fotential liability for damage to these homesis in
the range of one to five million doltars. Experis disagrae on how a house may be buiit safely on this site;
ordinary pectle agree that the site is inappropriate and may be unbuildable. The gracing shows that my
original contention that the project would be a dangerous nuisance to the upslope houses was correct.
This site was extensively used by the public for generations. it is situated on a headland adjacentio a
public park. It is underlain by sea caves and impacted by waves that cascade upward. The ot was craated
oy certificate of compliance that does not guarantee buildability,

Revocation. As the original appellant | sent in g lettar clting ons ground for revocation of the Riley permit
in October, 1688, You have this letter in the Riley file in Eureka. it is still valid, and deals with the lack of
solid informaticn available to the Commission in August, 1998, on the size, shape and pasiticn of the
property and the proposed house. Here is further information and a renewed reguest for a revacation
based on false and misieading infermaticn knowingly prasented to the Commission by applicants’ agent.

| also request a revocation of the extension granted by the Commission on December 15, 2000,
cn the basis that it was granted by fraud, that is, the effective denial by applicants’ attorney that he stakes
piaced ca. 20 September, 2000, represented the footprint of the house applicants intend to build. |
pholographea those stakes on September 23, 2000, hand carried the photos 16 Eureka, and showed
them 10 you and Sue Sniado in the presence of Jim Baskin. and | showed you and Sue using site plans in
the 1908 file how ! helieved the footprint was moved 1o the southeast, on September 27 or 28, 2000. 1
demonstrated all due diligence in informing you of the apparent change.

Under the California Environmental Quality Act. you had an agency obligation to look into that.

taff knew or should have known that the house site was moved and should have inctuded the actual
change in the staif report for the December 15, 2000, extension hearing.

After | submitted the 1898 letter, Stave Schoil told me that | could not proceed with a revocation
request untii after the permit was issued. Cn August 6, 2001, the permit to build the Riley house that was
approved in August, 1988, was issued by the Coastal Commission. On August 11, | received a copy of the
nermit, postmarked in Eureka August 8. CGn August 17, Raiph Matheson and several other men inciuding
a surveyar, resurveyed the site and re-set the stakes within a few inches of the September, 2000, stakes.

! fold you about this on September 21, 2001. You said some grading at the foot of the access road
may have been done pefore August 12, 2001, | believe the actual effective start of work was in
September, 2000, when the stakes were first placed for the project they are now grading.

After talking to vou. | cailed the Rilevs engineer David Paoli. He said he placed the rough stakesin
Septemper. 2000. ana that a surveyor from Sonema County did the final placement “last week,” thatis, on
August 17. He said he was hired about a year and a haif age 1© update the topo map of the site done In
1991 by the iate Don McAdam. and he was given the house plans but aid not know the 1998 aite. He cid
say that over the iife of the groject, since 1994. "buiidings nave been twisted and turneq,”
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The most likely reason for changing the house site is one of the changed circumstances | listed in
August, 20CC, during the permit axtension process, increased biuff failure and associated bluff retreat. |
believe that when Paoli re-did the topo map, he found mere bluff retreat than expected on the northwest
side of the progcsed house.

On Septamber 4, 2001, | checkad the Siiey file at the Mendccine County Flanning and Buiiding

ffice in Fort Bragg. The new blueprint shows a new Pacli biuft 1op line based on his 2000 work. The
greatest biuff retreat is the area shown in my photo submission for the 12/15/00 extension hearing.
Those were aiso photos from the full series | showed 1o you in Eureka in September, 200C. A new featurs
on the Paoli blueprint is labeled a well into the top of a sea cave. This may be for stormwater drainage.

The Commission should have granted a de novo hearing on the extension of the
approvai on December, 15, 2000. | submitted a list of changed circumstances in the short time
frame allowed; there werg enough letters to hold the 12/00 hearing. Among other changed
circumstances | listed loss of trees which will make any house here more visible from public places and
make the Riley house difficult or impossible 1o screen. This was valid, there is pitch pine canker disease
here, and the tree l0ss has proceeded apace, now ameounting to more than 100 pines iost from more than
a dozen lots. Another changed circumstance | cited was reckiall from the 'cusp' that their driveway has to
pass. This was new last year; it has aisc continued and increased.

' Under CEGA thers is an obligaticn on the lead agency. espaciaily in a functional squivalency
pregram such as the Coastal Commission's, to have substantial evidence. Further, there is an obligation
on the public agency to go cut and lcok for substantial svidence.

This comes from Sundstrom case, which was brought by cne of my neighbers cn Sedalia Drive.
The public can be the scurce of information on visuals, or personal experience. Becauss | made a claim of
dangercus nuisance o my property from the Riley preject, and cited 30 years of persconai cbservation of
the Riley lot, the Commission should have been really carsful in analysis, and stepped up the quality of
investigation.

The crigina language in the Sundsircm decision, Sundstrom v. County of Mendocino, AC38822,
Sup. Ct Ne. 52818, filed June 28, 1688, is: “While 2 fair argument of environmental impact must be based
an substaniial evidence, mechanical applicaticn of this rule would defeat the purpose of CEQA where the
locai agency has failed 10 undertake an acequate initial study. The agency should not be allowed 1o hide
pehind its own failure 1© gather relevant data.{...] CEQA glaces the burden of environmental investigation
on government rather than the public. if the iccal agency has failed 1o study an area of possible
envircnmental impact, a fair argument may be tased on the limited facts in the recerd. Deficiencies in the
record may actually enlarge the scope of fair argument by iending a logical plaustbility t0 3 wider range of
inferences.”

Examples cited include the dppellant’s assertion that vear-round irrigation with treated effluent wili
cause conifers on the site to die. "We of course have no means of assessing the correctness of this
contention, which. however, is unmet in the record.” Thisis simiiar 1o my assertions that there has been
tree ioss in the Sedaiia Drive neighborhood. which vou did nct examine. indeed. the current tree loss aiso
aftects Mr. Sundstrom’s property.

Moving the Riiey house site also moved it entirely below my property. Previousiy, *he house site
was delow two upsiope properties: the new site is most damaging to the appetiant. For the Commission to
allow increased damage from a preject to the one person who claimed dangerous nuisance from that
project, while rsfusing a de novo review of the changes {12/15/00), appears incorrect, even retaliatory.
Acdd o that the fact that | am 3 news reporter covering environmental issues inciuding the Commission.

The dangerous nuisance potential increased on August 31, 2001, wnen the Rileys' backhoe
operator iuily breacned the ca. 1862 raiiroad berm and cut to within 15 feet of the ice of the 1867
‘andslide that aftects the Stillman and Riley lots, as well as within 15 feet of the upsiope property tine. The
sffect of the grading on the site 1S a significant siteration of the coastai iandform, a slope alreaqy disturbed
'ay atgth-Century raliroad cut. They are removing the natural siope and spreading it cut over the biuif top.
The ﬂonstruc ion foreman told me on September 4 that they slan i build a retaining wail, Wouia this not
o€ a ?ore ine crotective sructure beyond what is allowed by the Coastal Act?

Current case iaw, as { unaerstand it requires a permit 10 be granted when an applicant has come
sack with five successively smailer oreiects. The Rileys were never reguired 1o reduce the size or the
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impact of their preject. The public will not buy the Commission’s 874 square foot "subterranean

garage/workshop.” They will see it as the ground floor of a three-story house because that is what they will
see from the beach, the park, Highway 1, the Gualala Blufftop Trail and the businesses downtown.

The Commission should revoke the permit and require the applicant to come back with
a plan that reduces the height by at least one story.

This neighberhood is listed in the Mendocino County LCP as a Neighborhood of Special
Concermn, with protections similar to those for a Highly Scenic Area. By allowing the Riley project at its
current scale in 1998, the Commission created a precedent most damaging 1o the Special Neighborhoods
designations in the LCP. The Commission weakened the LCP’s Highly Scenic Area provisions by granting
the Smiley permit in 2001. The Commission should not weaken local protections such as
these which carry out the intent of the Coastal Act.

When my family bought land on Sedalia Drive in 1888, neighbors asked them ¢ conform to
local standards and keep their house inconspicuous; this was pre-Commission, pre-LCP. S8ome of the
families have old photos showing pubilic use and conditions on Robinson Landing, and can remember the
same things | have contended in submissions to the County and the Coastal Commission. They
remember, as | do, walking to the beach, walking 1o town along the bluff, and going down to the fishing
ledge, all of which are no longer easy, or even pessible, 10 do. Some traditional public use could be
restored. A restored trail from Robinson Landing to the river bar beach may be the best way for the
California Coastal Trail to cross the Gualaia River.

Many neighbors. inciuding several whose land is contiguous with the Riley lot, sent letters of
oppesition to the Riley project which, tlke most of my submissions, were missing from the Riley file when |
checkad it in Eureka last September. Some of these ietters were thoughtiully written by people with 40
years of cbserving the Riley iot. Yat, letters from the Rileys and their agents were there in threes because
if they sent them ic senicr staff ag well as the staff person on the case, all the copies go 1o the same file.

My submissions went in following all the rules o get them in the public record. Some permits
come up now before the Commission that date irom as long ago as 1982. The Commission cannot know
now what may happen in the future that could lead o litigation or other trouble with permits, on difficult,
multi-nazard blufftop sites. The apelicant may come back asking for additicnal protective devices.
Everything substantive should remain in the file,

My dad wrote a memgir ang guidetook abour Gualala and the building of this house that is 20
years out of print, but | still get requests for copies every month. | worked on the original Gualala book, plus
on an unpublisned update in the late 1980s. My submissions are accurate,

What if the Rileys or their successors sued the Commission years hence. Wouid the hazard
conditions pretect the Commission? Have they been tested in court? My submissions with detailed
discussions of possible problems could protect the Commission - this was my intent, because if the
Ceommissicn had. say, required them 10 do a one story house instead of a three-story one, the Rileys
might have sued. With my submissions in the record, the Commission could show they had aired the
possibilities publicly. Without those submissions, the state is in a worse position.

Yet, | am in a far worse position, because if damage to my house occurs from future slides caused
by cutting away the old RR grade to build the Riley house, there is now nothing in the file to show that |
had raised this possibiiity of nuisance and provided information which | intended as svidence, it cost me
about 320,000 to estabiish this public record to protect my home and my family. The stress to my family is
particutarly great because the ashes of my parents are scattered on the siope that is being cut away from
below by the current Riley graging. ‘Ae wouid not have mentioned such a private matter had attorney Alan
Block not brought up a similar situation last month in Redondo Beach reiating to the Bonham family.

The Commission shouid restore the public record in the Riley file or give me written
instructions on how *o resubmit the materials. most of which were detailed responses 10 staff repons.
Restoring matenais is better, because they will show the original date stamps. and because letters from
neighbors opposed to the Riley oroject are aiso missing. Perhaps some Commussioners can heip restore
the record if thev have date-stamped copies in their own files.

Discussion af snclosures: The choto enclosures speak {or themselves for the most part. The site
maps inciuaed :n the 1857-98 stalf reporns were small, lackeg readabie numpers 1o enable Commissioners
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1o assess the size of the house, and showed the Matheson house pian overlaid on the Hart Engineering
Group design. The clearest site plan from the 1998 staff report is enciosed, with the Matheson house
design (minus deck; filled in with blue. The approximate 2001 site of that house plan is shown in green.

At the August, 1998, Commission hearing, applicants’ agent Ralph Matheson presented a
drawing of an oblique aerial view of the neighborhood houses and the proposed Riley house that was
inaccurate and misleading; he presented it with a letter included in the staff report [enclosad]. He also
showed a large, simplified drawing of the same faise size reiationship while speaking 1o the Commission.
Since Matheson is a building designer familiar with the neighborhood, he had the ability 1o ¢o an accurate
drawing, so this was false information knowingly presented by applicants’ agent.

Matheson's drawing represented the upsicpe homes as being far above the propcsed Riley
house, with a concave siope between them and the Riley lot. it left out important features at each end of
the Riley lot, the access/drainage easement road and Hobinson Gulch. The Riley house appeared small in
compariscn with the existing homes, most of which are pre-Commission.

The enciosed obiique aerial photo, one of a series which | could submit, shows the true
relationship of the properties, with an overlay showing the approximate positions of the house; the
position approved by the Commission in 1998 in biue and the approximate current position in green. The
slope is convex, the upper houses are smaller than the proposed Riley house, which blueprints on file in
the Fort Bragg office of Planning and Building show will be about 70 feet long, 44 feet deep, about 35
feet high from the ocean side. That will bring it above the main floor level of the upsiope houses.

in the accompanying lefter, Matheson makes many false assertions which | can refute. This is but
one example: On page 1 Matheson states ‘This property is not situated on a cliff over the ccean buton a
terrace with the ccean waves hitting on sandstene rocks which are dewnward and some distance from the
building site” The wo large enclosed photos show that this contention is false. Mathescon designed both
my house and the Van de Waier nouse. The encioseﬂ‘ arge photo from Robinson Point . and the last

ncte on the last page are shot frem the Van de ‘Water property with their permissicn. 5 Thus Matheson
knew the tcpography including the ungercut northwest {ace of the Riiey lot; thersfore that statement was
knowingty false. The ccean waves wash clear up o the vegetated edge of the Riley lot when they exceed
10 teet at the Point Arena buoy: | have submitted numercus photos showing that phenomenon and can
submit many more. The photo on the last page looking northwest along the public beach also shows the
ciiff over the oceanr with the Riley grading visibie through the pink overiay of the house position.

The enclosed views ¢f the house site lcoking southeast from Rooinson FPoint ziso show that the
house will intruce on the viewshed of the nopular Gualala Point Peg'cnai Park, and be visible from the
inns along the riverbank and Highway 1. The view irom the park near Highway 1. locking down the river o
Robinsen Landing and the series of headlands 2eyond, is the classic view of Gualaia seen in every local
art show. Cther houses are present, but thev are not out on a headland as is the Riley house site.

Two pages show the new house position stakes, one page of photos taken on September 23,
2000 and first submitted 10 the Commission on December 15, 2000, and one of photos of the stakes
placed on August 17, 2001. These are rough stakes and finai stakes for the same project. They also show
that khéfﬁtfﬁdmg corner will be visible from the mest popuiar part of Guaiala Point Regional Park, visible on
the horizon, the trail to the beach and Whale Watch Peint where memcrial benches are placed.

Last page of photos enclosed shows site disturbance as well as distant views. Moving the house
foctprint 10 the scutheast, as was dene in 2000, brings it more into the public view. it will be visible from
the entire length of the public beach. all of which is in Sonoma County. Cn Sunday, September 2. 2001, |
cbserved these public uses of the beach: boating tc it on the lagoon in kayaks and inflatables, safling past
it on the ocean, fisning in the ccean and the iagoon, piaying haii games, jogging, building griftwood
swructures. picnicking, photagraphy, videograpny, ‘vading walkmg along the beach toward Rooinson
Landing, walking dogs. tird watching and kile skimming. Six 1o eight pecple, some with dogs, walked on
Robinson Landing during a ene-nour period, in spite of recently-placed no trespassing signs.

Sincarely,
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A-1-57-46 MEN

Submiited by J. Varran, August 29, 2001

Right. Afterncon August 17, 2001, Ralch

Matheson, L, and crew set stakes for Rilev housa.

Center. Photo 8/18/01. Stakes set 8/17/01. Grading
for drive at R. Compare with photos submitted for
12/15/30 hearing showing stake meried ‘Bldg corner’
set by engineer David Paoli in 9/00. New stake is in
same position, showing that Paoli stakes were zat
for this project. At R, 9/00 stake ‘ies next to 8/101
stake. Public park and beach in viewshed, upper 3.

Lower. 8/1 801 . Shows more stakes Set on 8/1 7/G1.
é’gcﬁ 9/00 stakes lying next to new stakes, showing

this is the same prcject. Typical public use, a family
'acks 2t raditional 'adge fishing access.
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EXHIBITNO. 139

APPLICATION NO.
A-1-MEN-Q7-46

Letter From
Agent

Page 1 of 4

California Coastal Commission

Post Office Box 321
Gualala, CA 95445

Phone/Fax 707 884-3712
matheson@men.org

April 29,1998
Y = .
California Coastal Commission, North Coast Area 1 , ; L
45 Fremont, Suite 2000 [
- . . _ 19 l o |l _
San Francisco, California 94105-22 Jou LEY 01 1998
RE: David & Kathryn Riley, Gualala, CA Coropemm ity

Mendocino County Appeal No. A-1-MEN-97-46
Dear Ms Ginsberg, Staff and Commissioners:

After having worked with the Commission various times since 1972 | am not totally
unfamiliar with how it works and | am shocked that this project, first brought before the
Commissicn in August of last year — almost a year ago -- has not be approved in a
timely manner. These needless delays have caused a great deal of expense and
emotions for my clients and | feel compelled to state why this project should be
approved without further delay.

* The Staff has consistently recommended approval.

= This preject will not have an adverse affect on the Coastal Resources, The Coastal
Act, or Federal Coast Management Act of 1972.

= |t comglies with the intentions of building a single family dwelling on this site which is
residential, single-famiiy zoned.

* This property has been studied by five state licensed Ceologists and Geoclogical
Engineers and one state licensed Structural Engineer - all of whom find the site to be
sound and buildable and see no problems with the proposed home.

* The subject terrace has a total of 5 residentiai iots - and 3 of those lots have
existing homes. And, the Riley home is smaller than some of them.

* This property is not situated on a cliff over the ocean, but on a terrace with the ocean
waves hitting on sandstone rocks which are downward and some distance from the
actual buiiding site.

= This site is not listed as in a highly scenic area according to the County of Mendocino
Planning.

* This parcel is not highly visible from any public land as only a small portion of the
house wiil be seen and no precedent will be set upon its approval.

» The "sea caves" are not directly under the buiiding site, but in the sandstone cliffs
that rambie up to the terrac: level. And, some of the "sea caves" seen in photos are
not, in fact, sea caves but fractures from the wave action over hundreds or thousands
of years according a state-licensed geologist.

= Geologist, Enk Olsberg has stated repeatedly that in his professional, experienced
opinion that he sees no problem with the present location of the driveway. He has also
stated that it would be far less impact to leave the driveway approach as designed
rather than create further disturbance in that area.
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with a design that meets the all criteria in an approved, developed residential area for .
the county of Mendocino and the State of California.

My clients have been absolutely direct and honest, as have geologist Mr. Olsborg,
engineer Mr. Menning, and as designer, myself, with all our dealings with the Staff and
Commission. Each of us have dealt with facts and professional opinions based on
years of experience, not unfounded statements, half-truths and personal opinions. it
is important to the viability of the Commission that they not be misled by the appellant's
desire to not see any change in her neighborhood and to keep the “free front yard"
which she seems to feel is her property.

To date, the actions of the Commission regarding this project is exactly what the pecple
who opposed Proposition 20 were afraid of -- that one neighbor, for personal reasons,
could keep ancther from building their home. Don't let that happen!!!

As | understand it, the Staff exists to do all the legwork, research and to make an
experienced, knowledgeable recommendation to the Commission based on the facts.

The Staff has consistently recommended approval of this project after thorough study
of all matters relating to the project.

Sm ours, p

Ralph J. Matheson

oton David & Kathryn Riley
Cisborg
Menning
Heckert
State Assemblyman
State Senators
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RE: A-1-MEN-97-46 Riley
Submitted by J. Verran for Coastal Commission hearing set for 10/10/01

‘ Applicants’ agent Ralph Matheson wrote this knowingly false statement in his letter of 4/29/98:

Green overlays show the parcel hzﬂhly visible from a memonal bench in Guﬁlala Pomt Regional
Park and halfway along the beach in that park.; whole proposed house would be seen.

-~ |EXHIBITNO. 6

: : ~ : , e APPLICATION NO.
- B S - | R-A-1-MEN-97-046
R ! REVOCATION REQUEST
o ' FROM J. VERRAN FOR
: ' . [CpF A-I-MER-97-Udo,
o . : . o DATED 10/2/01

. Photos: J. Verran. 9/03/01



EXHIBIT NO. 7
APRLICAERN N6

A-1-MEN-87-046 REVOCATION REQUEST Qctober 8, 2001 .
FROM J. VERRAN FOR

7 J. Verran

DATED 10/8/01 38864 Sedalia Drive
P.O. Box 382

Gualala, CA 95445-0382

Mr. Robert Merrill

California Coastal Commission, North Coast RECEbrD AT  COMm SSLiM
P.O. Box 4908 M EE T~ I
Eureka, CA 95502-4908 B 1o /11/o {

Dear Mr. Merrill and Coastal Commissioners,

Thank you for the thorough Riley site inspection by five staff members on October 5, and for letting me
show you aspects of the bluff edge and historic significance from my deck and the Sheridan deck.

The project has now reached a point where it wil probably force me to move my house to save it. So much
of the lateral support of the Verran house was removed that the planned retaining wall is unlikely to
mitigate for the rock and earth taken away.

The applicants and their agents submitted faise, incomplete and misleading information in 1998 that was
in the the staff report for the August 12, 1998, de novo hearing. Some of this information appears to be
the basis for findings. The Commission could have placed different conditions on the project or even
denied it if they had the complete and correct information on 8/12/98.

The description of the project was incomplete in that it did not include the new road leading toward Ocean .
Drive, which has had no public review, and which is being constructed at the same time as the Riley site .
grading. That road proceeds somewhat inland from the old RR right of way, starting where the Riley access

road passes the seaward side of the iower Hathcoat garage. Tree removal associated with this new road

makes the Riley site and several existing houses much more visible from the Gualala Biuff Trail, which aiso

parallels the old RR. The new road increases bluft disturbance along the Gualala River estuary and the

ocean {o about a quarter mile for one house! The new road can shed silt into the estuary, which is

important steelhead rearing habitat.

In Ralph Matheson's 4/29/98 letter to the Commission he states that the gectechnical experts “all {...] find
the site to be sound and buildable and see no problems with the proposed home.” The truth is that all saw
probiems and made different recommendations, since they have different training and experience. For
example, Dr. J. David Rogers wrote in his report, p. 16, “Based upon the physical evidence for storm
splash at this site, pulling the house back as far as possibie would seem to be a prudent precaution. |...]
The old railroad right-of-way, cut into the natural biuffs behind the proposed residence is a good area to
avoid. It will continue to experience shallow, localized slope failures, as occurred this past winter. These
tailures will eventually ravel upslope, and enlarge in volume ...” With true and compiete information from
Matheson, the Commission could have taken note of these two Rogers caveats and required a smaller
house that could be pulled back from the wave spiash without impacting the RR grade. The Commission
couid have required an evaluation of wave damage potential from an engineer with expertise in that field.

Matheson wrote, same letter, “This site is not listed as a highly scenic area according to the County..."”
True but misleading. The area is listed as a neighborhood of special concern (MCCZC 20.504.020) which
protects public viewsheds AND historic structures. The Commission could have required an evaluation of
the historic structures on the site, some of which have been damaged by the grading or are at risk.

Matheson wrote, same letter, “The subject terrace has a total of five residential lots - and three of those

lots have existing homes. And, the Riley home is smaller than some of them.” He shows the Swegle
house on Robinson Point on his attached drawing as 5,000 sf. This home recently sold and was listed on
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the Master Property Description as 2,300 sf. With correct information about the size of existing homes,
the Commission could have required a smaller Riley house, in conformance with CZC 20.504.020.

Matheson wrote, same letter, “The ‘sea caves’ are not directly under the building site, but in the

sandstone cliffs that ramble up to the terrace level.” Your letter to Matheson of 8/06/01 states, page 2,
regarding site drainage plans: “The plans present two alternatives, an Alternative ‘C,’ involving routing the
drainage to Robinson Gulich via a pressure line, and “Alternative ‘D,’ involving routing the drainage using a
gravity storm drain system to an existing sea cave via a 8-inch bore through the biufftop. [...] We have
determined that the plans for Alternative C (pressure ling) satisty the requirements of special condition No.
2 and the plans are hereby approved. [...} Should the Riley's wish to pursue the Alternative D drainage
plan, the Riley’'s would need to apply for a permit amendment.” '

When | examined the Paoli blueprint in Fort Bragg, | noted that the well into a sea cave marked on the
blueprint was very near the former northwest part of the Riley house plan, which could account for the new
siting with the NW house wall in line with my NW property corner. The house site approved in 1988
extended beyond that corner and was partially in line with the Sheridan property.

Had the Commission been correctly and completely informed in 1998 by applicants and their agents that
sea caves did indeed penetrate under the vegetated biuff and under or near the house site, they couid
have denied the permit altogether and sought public acquisition of the property as too hazardous to build
on. Drilling into the top of a sea cave would seriously destabilize the bluff and threaten the upsiope homes
even more than the Riley house grading does. Neither the pressure line, which woutd require a tank,
pump and about 150 feet of trenching, nor the sea cave option has had any public discussion and the
other upsiope neighbors do not know about it. Indeed, | only know about it thanks to the Mendocino
County Planning and Building staff. These are serious bluff alterations that require pubiic review at a
hearing closer than San Diego.

Matheson wrote, same letter, “The neighbors closest to the site are on record to not opposing the
project.” The Verran house is the closest 10 the site. At the time of the 1898 hearings, of the seven lots
contiguous to the long, narrow Riley lot, only one was cwned by a supporier of the project, Mr. Heckert.

* The Hathcoats and the Stouts ( The Sheridans, who are opposed, now own this house) initially wrote

letters opposing the project, then went neutral. Letters of oppositon were on record from the Stillmans,
the Brittsan/Knight family, and the Hoffmans. In the neighborhood there was opposition from Ms.
Sellinger , the Bennets and the Van de Waters. Some people wrote from 20 or more years of personal
knowledge of the Riley lot. Owners of the Bower, Harris and Hewitt houses supported the project. Only
two homes on lots contiguous with the Riley lot, Hathcoat and Verran, are lived in full time.

Ta conclude, we do not yét know the full scope and effect of this project, which appears to set bad
precedent.

Respectfully submiled,

jn!ie Verran, appeliant
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EXHIBIT NO. 8

APPLICATION NO.
R-A-1-MEN-97-046

PORTION, SITE PLAN,
CONDITIONALLY

¢
£, APPROVED BY COMM.
ON 8/12/98
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¢ ICO GURLALA CAR FAX NC.

Re: A-1-97-46-MEN Due diligence

Mr. Robert Merrill

1787 884 1718

EXHIBIT NO. 10

NO.
AR 07046

RILEY (1 of 9)

DUE DILIGENCE
LETTERS

California Coastal Coinmission, North Coast

P.O. Box 4908, Eurek 1, CA 85502-4908

Dcar Mr. Mermll,

Sep. 26 2081 B1:40PM P4

J. Verran

38864 Sedalia Drive
P.O. Box 332
Gualala, CA 95445
September 23, 2001

This is the letter you r:quested by phone on 9/21/01, regarding my due diligence in appeals of
construction on Robinson Landing, Gualala, primarily the Riley project, A-1-97-46 MEN. This is
a condensed list. I belicve I have acted with due diligence in this matter over the past ten yeurs,
within the limits imposed by employment, financial and health considerations. My submissions
and testimony also ad'anced the discourse at each adminiswrative level. T have plenty of baciup
material, such as phone bills, receipts and photographs which could be used to fine tune this
account. At your request, I listed my submissions that I found were missing from the
Commission’s Rilcy f le in a separate letter, enclosed.

Discussion: A willing seller, the old Empire Redwood Co., was unable to sell to a public agzncy
a property which has high value as a wildlife corridor and historic site, as well as recreational,
scenic and strategic intportance: the headland at the north side of the mouth of the Gualala Fiver
historically known as Robinson Landing. The headland fell into private hands around 1990. The
view down the Gualal i River towards Robinson Landing 1s often used in husiness promotions
and by artists as a sigr ature for this area, which depends economically on visitors.

The Rileys want to build a very large house on a narrow, fragile bluff top lot. Rather than scale
down their project in 1esponse to increasing site constraints caused by erosion, they chosc ir,
September, 2001, to war down a ca. 1862 railroad embankment and pull out the rails, substan-
tially alter a coastal la1d form, and create a major intrusion into a classic viewshed to and along
the coast. The state should not allow that. The ideal outcome would be public acquisition of both
the IMeckert and Riley lots and restoration of the trail link to Gualala Point Regional Park. The
next hest would be a f roject of one story with dedicated public access along the bluff edge.

Background: My par:nis, Roger and Shirley Verran, bought this lot in 1969 at a price that was
more than four times the going price for lots of ca. 12,000 square feet located on the inland :ide
of Highway 1, becaus:: the Empire Redwood Railroad Easement which formed the scaward
boundary was slated t» become part of a park and our lot was considered ocean-front with beach
access. They built this house in 1972-73, pre-Cammission, but following local community
standards by blending with its natural surroundings. The two-story Verran house is about 1, 900
square fect and has a < 00-sf detached garage.

My father wrote a hock ahout building the house and retiring to Gualala. 1 helped with the
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research for the guidebook section and photography. The book was published in 1978, and
though it is out of print, people sull ask me for copies about twice a month.

Early in 1996, my fath:r died. Family members scattered his ashes near those of my mother on
the seaward slope below the house, which I inherited.

Due diligence: In 199 , an access road was built from Sedalia Drive to Robinson Landing down
a county drainage easenent,, and continued NW below the RR bank, I complained to the real
estate agent involved, . erry Tinkess. T wrote a letter to the County of Menclocino objecting to the
road as likely to speed up drainage to the fragile bluff top and increase blutf top erosion. The
opening of the road ditl change the vegetation leaving fewer native bushes and more introduced
weeds. 1 believe it also increased the bluff retreat near the base of the access road.

I was familiar with such problems from my volunteer work since 1979 toward expanding Sinky-
onc Wilderness State Fark. In 1991 I was serving on the planning committze which later led to
the ercation of the Sinliyone Intertribal Wilderness Park. The Coastal Conservancy, which
convened that commince, set up many meetings and field trips with experts who discussed issues
such as coastal erosior and siting of the Lost Coast Trail. I also served on the Sierra Club Cali-
fornia State Park Com nittee at that time, and over the years held a number of Sierra Club
offices and had scrved on the boards of Californians Organized to Acquire State Tidelands
(COAAST) and the Eavironmental Protection Information Center (EPIC). I had also volun-
teered with other groups including Friends of the Coast and Friends of Schooner Guich. Thus I
had more than the usuul level of knowiedge of coastal planning matters and coastal erosion.

The parcel now owne¢ by the Rileys was created by centificate of compliance filed by Dorothy
Bolton in 1990. In 1964, the Rileys applicd for a county permit for 2 large log home designed by
Hart Engineering Group based in Truckee. T objected 1o the project at the (Coastal Development
Permit hearing in Fort Bragg. Other neighbors wrote letters objecting. The pcrmit was approved,
and on the same day CDPs were approved for the contiguous Schmitt parcel on Robinson Land-
ing and the Hathcoat lot which the access road to Robinson Landing crosscs by easement,

During the summer of 1994 I met on scparate occasions with both the Rileys and their architect
on the property and expressed my concerns, Neither the Rileys nor the Schmitts built, for reasons
unrelated to my object.ons. The Hathcoats did build their house and a detached garage in 1094,
Their house is located on the upper terrace in a row of pre-Commission houses including mize.

In 1994 1 started work ng for the weekly Gualala newspaper, the Independent Coast Observer, as
a reporter and photogr.ipher covering planning, environment and other government mauers. This
also gave me an oppor unity to develop more than ordinary knowledge of such issues. In 19951
helped cover the Coral Court landslide which occurred just three parcels up the coast from the
Riley lot. This dramati: slide made the front pages of the Santa Rosa Press Democrat and the San
Francisco Chronicle. . took a garage with a large motor home inside onto the heach, where they
oroke up and washed away. This event had a strong effect on my thinking about coastal crosion.
The commumty 1alks ¢ { it still. The county found that 14 properties were damaged.
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In late 1996, the Riley: sought a renewal of the 1994 county permit, but with a new house design
by Ralph Matheson, w0 designed the Verran house. Again ] went to Fort Bragg to object. I was
present during the Feb., 1997, CDP hearing, but was not recognized to speak, so Ray Hall read
my lettcr of opposition into the record before the end of the meeting,

I was considering appcaling the approval of the renewed CDP when my neighbor to the SE, Ben
Stillman, called and as<ed me 10 check on a landslide seaward of his house. This was the first
time I learned that at sometme in January, 1997, a slide occurred affecting the Stillman, Riley
and Verran properties. It originated from slope failure along a 1960s fence line above the RR
grade. The slide has nct moved much since then, but it has not revegetated much either. I was
alarmed because the new slide appeared 10 be separated only by the ca. 1862 RR cut bank from 2
“cusp” of erosion at th > ocean bluff edge. The Riley driveway would have to cross that align-
ment. 1 appealed the R:ley permit renewal to the Mendocino County Board of Supervisors.

The Stillmans hired Lizensed Surveyor Richard Seale from Fort Bragg to survey their property
so Ben Stillman, an engincer, could determine how large the slide was and do technical drawings
of it. Ile decided not 1t do the drawings, but he said they lost about 24 fect of their lot to the
slide. I hired Seale to survey my lot and accompanied him when he located the iron bars and
wooden stakes, which he flagged with blue and white tape, some of which is still there. Scalz

. also drew a signed ma» for me on a copy of the assessor’s parcel map, showing the new slice
and an old one that aff>cted my property somewhat NW of the new one. The older slidc is panly
revegetated. T submitie d that map to both BOS and Coastal Commission.

At that time I was volunteering on the board of the Redwood Coast Land Conservancy. Their
major project was the <Jualala Bluff Trail. The landowners who had made offers to dedicate were
fighung RCLC’s effor s (o pick up the OTDs. The landowners said a trail was inappropriate
because of bluff instat ility along the old RR grade. I resigned from the RCLC hoard to pursue
the Riley appeals, beciuse my argument was also based on bluff instability along the RR grade,
and I felt this could enibarrass RCLC. My opinion is that Robinson Landing is safe for trails but
not for roads and hous :s.

While preparing {or th: BOS appeal hearing, I brought the Riley CDP before the Gualala M-
nicipal Advisory Cour.cil as a non-agenda item. The GMAC did not then make written recoms
mendations to the county on residential permits, only commercial ones. Then as now, they did
review planning matite s on an informal basis by request.

The advice from GMA C members has proved good over time. They said taere were problems
with the narrow bluff top access for the drive; with the drainage, since the house was proposad to
be betwesn two county drainage easements from Sedaiia Drive; and with the size of the house on
the long, narrow lot. Chair Jim Lotter used a defining image during a break in the BOS bear; ng
{(GMAC members wer > there about the Gualala Bluff Trail). Lotter said the house would be like
. a layer cake (devils food?) on a small, wet plate, and could “pop right off.”
At the BOS hearing in March, 1997, three of the five Supervisors voted with me: Peterson,
Shoemaker and Campbell. As 1 landscape architect, Shoemaker was particularly concerned
about drainage. They /ere also concerned about screening the house from public viewsheds.
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4, :
They continued the he: ring and asked the Rileys’ agent, Ralph Matheson, w0 come back with
drainage and landscaping plans.

I purchased a set of four aerial photos from different years showing the arca at the mouth of the
Gualala River. A local expert advised me how to use these to estimate bluff retreat. I presentzd
these photos and my ir formal analysis to both the BOS and the Commission.

At the Junc, 1997, BO:3 hearing the Rileys pleaded for their “dream house.” They refused to
submit the drainage and landscape plans requested by the county. Attorney Jared Carter repr:-
sented them. He argue that my parents profited from knowledge that a house would be buils
below theirs by getting their lot for a Jower price. I argued that the Robinsen Landing portion of
the Empire Redwood IR casement (which extended to the mean high tide line) was not subdi-
vided when my parents bought their lot, but was proposed for park land and coastal access, and
that the Riley lot was created ca. 1990 by certificate of compliance. Supervisors asked Ray Hall
which was correct; he said he didn’t know. By raising the certificate of compliancc issue, on
which I was bricfed by my real estate expert, Karen Peterson Scott, I advanced the discourse.

Ralph Matheson also zrgued for the Rilcys that there was no public viewshed question because
the view of the Riley 1yt and proposed house from the Gualala Point Regicnal Park Visitor
Center is a distant one. In fact, the view of the Riley lot from the trail that icads from the visitor
center to the beach anc 1o Whale Watch Point is much closer and clearer, and the view from the
park ocean beach which is contiguous with Robinson Landing, is closer yet, as [ have shown.
with several photos su»mitied to the Commission.

The BOS approved the Riley permit renewal 5-0, and I appealed the decision to the Coastal
Commission. Thena [ ¢onsulted several people knowledgeable about environmental litigation.
They advised me 1o hic a geologist and contact Mark Massara. Mark’s first advice was to
inspect the Coustal Commission’s Riley file. Staffer Jo Ginsberg said that was not possible.

Late June is in the geo ogical field scason so I was lucky to be able to hire Dr. Eugene Kojan,
who is licensed in botl. California and Oregon and is familiar with the erosive geology of the
North Coast. Afier a site inspection Dr. Kojan ordered a series of aerial photographs that go
back to 1942, longer than the than the set 1 already had. He found 2 flat rock on the seaward
slope of my lot which .5 visible in all vertical aerial photos to use as a location point. He ask:d
me 1o have a survey done of the bluff edge which Seale did. I became familiar with points,
locations and lines of sight from attending both Seaie surveys. I had learned beginning surveying
as a student of archace logy.

Using the best focused area of the aerial photos Dr. Kojan's analysis extended only to the trian-
gular point in front of ny house, and south to the mouth of the river. None of the other gcotcch-
nical reports for Robinson Landing included a locatable point or a current survey of the blufl
edge.

Dr. Kojan planned to speak at the Coastal Commission Substantial Issue hearing but it was st
for August, 1997, whe1 he could not be there. He wrote to the Commission and asked for a Jater
hearing, which was deaied. Because he does not type. Dr. Kojan hand wrote his report and fuxed
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it to me to type and fax back for revisions, of which therc were many.

At the hearing in Los /ingeles I gained Substantial Issue on the basis of public viewshed and
geological instability which makes the Riley project a threat to my home. Staff had recom-
mended Substandal Iss ue on public viewshed only. I not only exercised due diligence but also
advanced the discourst. The Commission asked the Rileys 10 hire a geologist who would be
ncutral and could elucidate the disagreements between Dr. Kojan and the Rileys’ geologist, Eric
Olsborg. Dr. J. David Rogers was selected with the agreement of Dr. Kojan, who could not be
present at a site visit t¢ both Robinson Landing lots on October 7, 1997.

1 took off work to atten:d that meeting. Besides Dr. Rogers, Eric Olsborg and Ralph Matheson
atiended for the Rileys. Jim Glomb as the Stillmans’ geologist, and a crew from the firm that did
the geotechnical report for the Schmitt lot. That was purchased ca. 1997 by a profit-sharing trust
set up by a Santa Rosa law [irm and also known as the Heckert Trust. Gerald Heckert's real
cstate agent, Jerry Tinkess, was also present. The meeting was extremely interesting and educa-
tional and was videota sed by the Heckert crew. I observed and asked questions of the geologists.

The Rogers report cam.e out in December, 1997, For the De Novo hearing [ prepared a compare-
and-contrast analysis « { that report, Kojan's and Olsborg’s. I suggested that the Commission

. should adopt as condit.ons those mitigations about which any two of the experts agreed. This
submission went beyo:ad due diligence and also advanced the discoursc.

From studying these g:otechnical reports, and visiting the site with several geologists, and from
my own obscrvations, [ hecame more convinced that the Riley project threatened the upslope
houses. I consulted a Ukiah attorney, Nancy Biggins, who was recommended by my real estate
expert. Ms. Biggins went over my analysis of the three geotechnical reports and helped me draft
a leter to the Commis.ion in which I claimed dangerous nuisance from the Riley project and
stated that they should not be allowed to remove the lateral support of my property.

The De Novo hearing was held in Monterey in March, 1998. There I madc a slide presentation
showing the site. Mark Massara spoke on behalf of the Sierra Club. The Commission continued

the hearing to get mor: information from applicants.

A few weeks later a Gialala person to whom applicants and their agents bragged in a visitor
scrving facility told mu that they were saying they were going to San Francisco to turn in a
package of maicrial th it would not only defeat me, but destroy my reputation. Hearing that, [
wrotc to the Commission complaining about some of the attempted intimidation from Riley,
Heckert and their agents. This April, 1998, lerter was not in response to their April, 1998, letters,
but to a warning ahout them; I did not see copies of the letters until the July, 1998, staff report

camc out.

. During the intervals b tween hearings I was also researching the Gualala infrastrucrure and other
issucs related to the Riley project. [ made a number of visits to county offices in search of rel-
cvant information. I w.nt to Planning and Building, Public Works, the county map room, the:
Assessor’s Office and the County Clerk-Recorder’s office. 1 was also doing news reporting on
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related permit matters, and interviewing people with knowledge of planning and local history.

Some of the document: I submitted to the Commission.

I rescarched the history of Robinson Landing and examined the historic photograph collections
at the Mendocino County Historical Society in Ukiah and the Mendocino County Museum in
Willits and located a n'imber of photos showing Robinson Landing with it timber chutes, and
the Gualala RR, which was said to be the only wide-gage timber RR in the U.S.A. Some I sub-

mitted to the Commaission.

I submittcd to the Corimission information about two houses that were damaged by bluff re-
treat, one on Coral Court, and the other in McKinleyville but owned by a Gualala resident. In the
second instance, hazard conditions placed by the Commission when it approved the original
subdivision did not carry forward to the owner. Nancy Biggins studied the hazard conditions
proposed for the Riley project and told me they would protect no-one. Those two instances cf
damage were only cxanples. Most people who live here could tell about othcr homes damaged
by bluff retreat or landslides.

For the August 12, 19¢8, hearing in Huntington Beach, attorey Nancy Biggins advised me 1o
prepare a detailed response to the staff report with exhibits. This was arduous but T was able to
get it to staff at the Conmission meeting the then-requircd 24 hours before the hearing. I alsy
prepared a brief slide <how, mostly made up of vertical aerial photos and maps. Mark Massara,
for the Sierra Club, spke eloquently about the dangerous nuisance posed by the Riley project.
The Commission approved the permit with conditions which did not seem protective enough of
either natral resource; or upslope houses, so I wrote the Commission a letter after the hearing
(and after other hearin 35, 100.)

I was considering seeking a revocation of the permit, so I needed to look at the Commission's
Riley file. Since sever.ul requests to view it were denied by coastal planning staff, I decided 10 do
what works at the county level; view the file under supervision of clerical staff if a planner is not
available. I also wanted to turn in to Ms. Ginsberg a batch of material gleaned from Mendocino
County files about the effects of the Coral Court landslides, because she sent me a letter stating
that the Commission had no record of them. I visited the Commission offi:e in San Francisco on
October 8, 1998. 1 ask:d to see the Riley file, and after about two hours, I was allowed to sec it
for about an hour and 1 half. This was due diligence.

I was looking for blue rints, hecause there were $0 many inconsistencies about the size and
shapc of the Riley lot :ind the proposed house in the staff reports. There were no blueprints ¢f the
Matheson design in th: file, only a much reduced copy of one with the outline of the house
drawn over in black marker so the dimensions were not visible. Since it was late afternoon vhen
1 started there was no “imec to look for my submissions, so I did not notice if any were missing,

Because I disagreed with the findings in the July, 1998, staff report, I attended the findings
hearing in Qcrober. 1998, in Oceanside to seek revisions. I had recruited experts to testify at the
findings hearing after steve Scholl told me it would be in San Francisco in December, but be-
cause the (indings wer 2 brought on in October in Oceanside, they could not attend.

L8 q
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This time my response to the staff report was a short list of points, turned in 24 hours before the
hearing. [ showed the Commission a few slides of the narrow point at the bluff edge that the
access road would hav: to pass. That road now exists and indeed the setback is less than six feet
as I told the Commissi n then. Opinion: If taking leave without pay from my job and driving
from Gualala nearly to San Diego to-contest findings is not due diligence, what is?

At that point, I though. the Commission sent the findings back to staff for revision, and I kept
watching the Agenda for the revised findings to come back. I did not learn until September,
2000, when you provided me with a copy of the Adopted Findings, that they were issued only a
few days after the Occanside hearing. Opinion: Commissioners should instruct staff to provide
copics of final Adopte] or Revised Findings to appellants as a routine matier.

I started working on revocation. Steve Scholl explained the criteria. I sent in the first part of a
revocation request, the letter about dimensions based on my October 8 search of the file. Mr.
Scholl phoned and told me that it was not appropriate to send in a revocation request until the
permit was issued, anc applicants first had to comply with the permit conditons. Therefore | sent
no further revocation 1naterials until after August 6, 2001, when the permil was issued.

Later in, 1998, I looked up the Matheson Riley house blueprint at the Fort Bragg county planning
office and wrote dowr the house dimensions, then hired Karen Scott to check the lot dimensions
with me. We used a 100-foot tape. Opinion: I have 2 30-year personal prescriptive right to cross
Robinson Landing, ani ] regard these measurements as a public safety issue. Ms. Scott wrote a
letter to the Commission which I included with other material such as a ¢olor-coded zoning map
in a mailing to all Commissioners.

While waiting for Rile y hearings to come on after turning in documents, I found that there were
many related matters before the Commission, such as sea caves in Solana Beach, and other
agenda items that wen: newsworthy, such as LFAs. Few reporters cover the Coastal Commis-
sion, even when it meuts in their own cities. I started writing Coastal Commission articles for the
ncwspaper I work for ind by now these amount to a substantial body of work of which I am
proud. Opinion: these articles give a sympathetic porirayal of the Commission and its work. I
also noted that North Coast appeals were rarely supported by live testimony, so I started doing
that for the Sierra Clu: and Friends of Schooner Gulch or as an individual, as needed.

In 1999, the Hathcoat: sought 2 county permit for a second detached garage below their house
near where the RR gride crosses Robinson Landing. I opposed this on grounds of slope instabil-
ity, drainage changes “vhich could lead to increased bluff retreat at the “cusp,” and visibility from
the beach. The county granted the permit without requiring a geotechnical report and without
requiring the building to be painted a dark, non-reflective color to lessen its impact on the park
viewshed. I appealed it to the Coastal Commission and was denied substantial issue. The garage
was built; it is intrusively visible from much of the park and beach. The “cusp” started shedding
rocks in a way I never saw before. That may follow the upslope construction without being
causcd by it.

In 2000, T opposed the extension of the Riley permit and asked for a de novo hearing. During the
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extension process I visited the Eureka office to show you photographs and look through the
Riley file. I found mos: of my submissions missing. One set of photos showed rocks shed from
the “cusp.” You said d ere needed to be more context and scale and advised me 10 re-shoot,
which I did, although (5 do so I had to go out on a pillar underlain by an arch which I feel is
dangerously unstable. This is another example of due diligence. These photos of rock fall I
submitted to the Comniission at the December, 15, 2000, hearing. Another set of photos showed
stakes placed on the R.ley lot ca. September 20, 2000, one of which was marked “bldg. cornar.” 1
told you that these stab es did not match the house position approved by the Commission in 1998,
and thereforc it was a changed circumstance.

T asked for a staff site /isit, which you and staff geologist Mark Johnsson did on October 20.
2000. I arranged for yuu to visit several sites, but we were limited to two because of rain and
your schedule constraints. I cooperated with Johnsson’s request to send him Dr. Kojan's large
overlaid aerial photo and other materials so he could use them in his presentation to the Commis-
sion.

Although attorney Thomas Lippe argued on my behalf at the December 15, 2000, extension
hearing that changing the position of the house was a sufficient changed circumstance to ¢all for
a de novo hearing, but %rBecembebtjle Commission approved the permit extension.

During 2001 I kept tal ing pictures of dead and dying trees, increased rockfall, and new blow-
holes, which arc hard .0 photograph because the sea behind them tends to be white with foamn
when they are blowiny. These are all changed circumstances that affect the Riley pe ra},,; I -
checked the Riley file in Fort Bragg from time to tire, expecting another extension but
instead, the permit was issued on August 6. For my due diligence after that date, see my Sertem-
ber, 2001, letter and v suals.

Yours sincerely,
Vg

Verran

‘So\q




Re: A-1-MEN-97-46 Riley J. Verran |
38864 Sedalia Drive
P.O. Box 382
Gualala, CA 95445-0382

Mr. Robert Merrill [and Commissioners} # of

California Coastal Commission, North Coast 7/ Z 2 / /

P.C. Box 4908

Eureka, CA 95502-4908

Dear Mr, Merrill,

In haste to finish the Due Diligence letter which you requested by phone on 9/21/01, I left out some important
material. The following paragraphs should go before the last paragraph in that letter.

After reading the submissions from applicants and their agents that were in the Riley file in September
2000, I decided that the letter from Ralph Matheson that was in the staff report for the August, 1998,
hearing where the Commissioners voted to approve the project with conditions, fit the revocation criteria
for false information knowingly submitted by applicants or their agents.

The drawing showing the neighborhood is particularly misleading, but how could I refute it? Only by using
a photograph taken from an airplane. Even so, since the Matheson drawing is subjective and inaccurate, it
would be impossible to take a photograph from a comparable viewpoint. It was not easy to get a flight, and
I could not fly the coast line until April, 2001. Then I was able to get photos of the Riley lot that show at
least the central area of the drawing from an oblique aerial perspective. [One photo with text and overlays
was enclosed with my revocation request.]

For the July, 2001, Commission Reception in Rohnert Park, I prepared three panels of photos of the
Northern Sonoma / Southern Mendocino coast. One panel showed the visual importance of Robinson
Landing, and included three of my oblique aerial photos of 4/01. Since the Commissioners had the opportu-
nity to study this panel and captions, I will bring this o the hearing in Coronado, show it, and turn it in.

v

The following paragraph should come at the end of the letter, after the current last paragraph.

In summary, I protested all stages of Robinson Landing development starting in 1991; appealed the Riley
project to the county in 1997 before appealing it to the Commission; hired a surveyor, geologist; real estate
expert and attorneys; kept in touch with staff by phone; atiended and spoke at all Commission hearings;
presented materials at or before each hearing that advanced the discourse; sent in comments after most
hearings; researched the Gualala infrastructure and the historic importance of Robinson Landing and
provided much information to the Commission; photo--documented the parcel and the neighborhood on a
continuous basis; attended other Comiunission meetings 1o observe discussions of similar appeals; partici
pated in other Gualala-area County and Commission appeals as an environmental volunteer. I believe this
amounts to due diligence.

Respectfully submitted,
D) EGEIVE W 2rre
0CT 0 2 2001 ie Verran, appellant
CALIFORNIA -
COASTAL COMMISSICN
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